
1  
 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 4,  2016 
CLOSED SESSION 5:00 P.M. 

REGULAR SESSION 6:00 P.M. 
 

 COMMUNITY MEETING ROOM 
177 First Street West, Sonoma, CA 

AGENDA ITEM RECOMMENDATION 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 The mission of SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of everyone in 
our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Hirsch  

2.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 

Hirsch  

3.    CLOSED SESSION  
Calif. Government Code § 37606 & Health and Safety Code §32106 

 

Report 
Involving Trade Secret regarding Business Strategy 

Hirsch  

4.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

Hirsch Inform/Action 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda. It is 
recommended that you keep your comments to three minutes or less. Under State Law, matters 
presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time. For items 
appearing on the agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item 
comes up for Board consideration. At all times please use the microphone. 
 

Hirsch  

6.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ON JANUARY 19, 2016 Hirsch Inform/Action 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Regular Board Minutes 1.7.16 
B. FC Minutes 11.17.15 
C. GC Minutes 12.15.15  
D. QC Minutes 11.18.15 
E. MEC Credentialing Report 

Hirsch Action 

8. CALIFORNIA HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION PRESENTATION ON 
UPDATES AND PREDICTION OF HEALTHCARE IN THE STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA 

Anne McLeod,  
Senior VP  of 
Health Policy & 
Innovation 

Inform 

9. RESOLUTION No. 327 1206(b) CLINIC FORMATION  Hirsch Action 

10. SATELLITE HEALTHCARE LEASE Donaldson/ 
Jensen 

Action 

11. RESOLUTION No. 326 UNION BANK LINE OF CREDIT EXTENSION  Jensen Action 



2  
 

12. FY2016 CAPITAL SPENDING  Jensen Inform 

13. FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MONTH ENDING DECMBER 31, 2015 Jensen Inform 

14. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT FOR JANUARY 2015  Mather Inform 

15. OFFICER & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a) 

• Policy Governing Bidding for Facility Contracts (Hohorst) 
Governance Committee 

• ACHD Update (Hirsh/Boerum) 
 

Board Inform/Action 

16. BOARD COMMENTS 
  

Board Inform 

17. ADJOURN 
 The next Regular Board meeting is March 3, 2016 

Hirsch  

 



 
7. 
 

CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 



Page | 1 
 

 

 

SVHCD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, January 7, 2016 
5:00 p.m. Closed Session 

6:00 p.m. Regular Session 
COMMUNITY MEETING ROOM 

177 First Street West, Sonoma  
 RECOMMENDATION 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of SVHCD is to maintain, improve and restore the health of 
everyone in our community. 

  
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Closed Session called to order at 5:00pm 

Hirsch  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION Hirsch  
3. CLOSED SESSION 
Calif. Government Code § 37606 & Health and Safety Code §32106 

Hirsch 

Report Involving Trade Secret regarding Business Strategy 

 

4. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION Hirsch  

• There were no actions or decisions from the Closed Session. 
• Regular Session called to order at 6:10pm 

  

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION  
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing 
on the agenda. It is recommended that you keep your comments to three 
minutes or less. Under State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be 
discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time. For items appearing on the 
agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item 
comes up for Board consideration. At all times please use the microphone. 

Hirsch  

6. CONSENT CALENDAR  Hirsch Action 
A. Regular Board Minutes 12.3.15  
B. No FC Minutes  
C. No Minutes  
D. GC Minutes 9.22.15  

 E. MEC Credentialing Report 
 

Consent Item E was held back from the 1st

 

 Motion for further 
discussion.  Mr. Boerum does not agree with the new practice of 
substituting physician names with numbers on Medical Staff 
Credentialing Reports.  He has done research and collected data from 
other institutions and will present his findings to the Board in a formal 
letter.  After comments, Mr. Boerum motioned to approve the MEC 
Report and all were in favor. 

1st MOTION by 
Rymer to approve 
Consent Items A-D by 
and 2nd

 

 by Nevins. All 
in favor. 

2nd MOTION by 
Boerum to approve 
Consent Item E and 
2nd by Rymer.  All in 
favor. 

7. GROWTH AND BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW Donaldson Inform 
Ms. Donaldson gave an overview of the growth and development at the 
Hospital including challenges, priorities over next 6 months, trends, 
margins, and analysis of select departments. 

  

8. MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE  Kenney Inform 



Page | 2 
 

Mr. Kenney gave an update on marketing and communications 
including future goals, the continued emphasis on community 
engagement, challenges, supporting growth, and the 70th

 

 Anniversary 
Celebration and Open House. 

 

9. ELECTION OF SPECIAL DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE 
TO SONOMA LAFCO  

Hirsch Action 

Mr. Boerum motioned to endorse Al Giordano and there was no second 
from the Board.  Ms. Nevins motioned to endorse Ernie Loveless and 
all were in favor. 

 MOTION by Nevins 
to endorse Ernie 
Loveless and 2nd by 
Hohorst.  All in favor. 

10. BOARD COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS Hirsch Action 

Finance Committee:     Nevins (Chair) and Hohorst 
2016 Board Committee assignments are as follows: 

Governance Committee:  Hohorst (Chair) and Boerum 
Quality Committee:     Hirsch (Chair) and Rymer 
Audit Committee:     Hirsch (Chair) and Nevins 
 
The Board praised Mr. Fogg for his service and commitment as 
Finance Committee Chair.  Over the past several years, his service has 
had direct benefit on the Hospital and Community.  The Board looks 
forward to his future participation as a Community Member on the 
Finance Committee. 

 MOTION by Hohorst 
to approve and 2nd by 
Boerum.  All in favor. 

11. CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT Chamberlin Inform 

The SVH Medical Staff has instituted a process called Executive Peer 
Review designed to be a multi-disciplinary process and have an open 
referral pattern to review issues that rise to an overall hospital level of 
concern. It is intended to help physicians improve their practice by 
having diverse sets of physician eyes review case information.  
Meetings will be held monthly immediately following the general 
sessions of the Medical Executive Committee.  The first meeting of the 
Executive Peer Review will be January 21, 2016. 
 
Dr. Chamberlin believes it is important that the Medical Staff 
demonstrate value to our Community and believes that SVH can do this 
by demonstrating its real value by collecting real outcomes and making 
them public.  It is his contention that this concept of results based 
value will help SVH become more competitive in the marketplace over 
the next 5-10 years. 

  

12. FINANCE REPORT FOR MONTH ENDING 11.30.15 Jensen Inform 

After accounting for all income and expenses, but not including 
Restricted Contributions and GO bond activity, the net loss for 
November was ($388,074) vs. a budgeted net loss of ($287,304). The 
total net income for November after all activity was $244,714 vs. a 
budgeted net loss of ($102,767). 

  

13. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT DECEMBER 2015 Mather Inform 

Ms. Mather shared the Administrative Report for month ending 
12.31.15 emphasizing dashboard and trended results.  The strategic 

  



Page | 3 
 

update portion of the report included Hospital volumes, service area 
optimization, time shares, sleep lab, parcel tax renewal, community 
opinion and philanthropy. 
14. OFFICER & COMMITTEE REPORT Board Inform/Action 
A. 
 i.Policy on Governing Bidding for Facility Contracts (action) 

Governance Committee  

 ii.Policy on Appointment of Community Members to Board 
 Committees (inform) 
B. 
 i. Susan Porth was introduced as the newly appointed 
 Community Member of the Finance Committee. 

Finance Committee 

 MOTION by Nevins 
to approve GC Policy 
(i) and 2nd

 

 by Rymer.  
All in favor. 

GC Policy (ii) will be 
brought forward to the 
Board meeting Feb. 4, 
2016 for approval. 

15. BOARD COMMENTS Board Inform 
A Special Closed Board meeting is planned for late January or early 
February of this year.  

  

16. ADJOURN Hirsch  

Meeting was adjourned at 7:45pm.   

 



1 

 

 

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE 
DISTRICT 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
MINUTES 

TUESDAY, November 17, 2015 
Schantz Conference Room 

 

 
Present Excused/Absent Staff Public 
Dick Fogg 
Stephen Berezin 
Sharon Nevins 
S. Mishra, M.D. (by phone) 
Peter Hohorst 
Mary Smith 
 
 

Steve Barclay 
 

Ken Jensen 
Jeannette Tarver 
Michelle Donaldson 
Gigi Betta 
Sarah Dungan 
Kelly Mather 
 

Keith Chamberlin, M.D. 
Susan Porth 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTIONS FOLLOW-
UP 

MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS The mission of SVHCD is to maintain, improve and restore the 
health of everyone in our community.  The vision of SVHCD is 
that SVH will be a nationally recognized, compassionate place 
of healing known for excellence in clinical quality.  We serve as 
the guide and indispensable link in our community’s health care 
journey. 

  

1.  CALL TO ORDER Fogg   
 Meeting called to order at 5:00pm. 

The December 2015 FC meeting has been cancelled 
but the financial report will still be distributed to 
Board, Community and Staff. 

  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION Fogg   
 No public comment.   
3. CONSENT CALENDAR Fogg Action  



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTIONS FOLLOW-
UP 

 FC Meeting Minutes, 10.27.15 MOTION by Berezin to 
approve Consent and 2nd

 
 

by Hohorst.  All in favor. 
    

4. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT FOR 
 NOVEMBER 2015 

Nevins Inform  

 Ms. Mather presented the dashboard and trended 
results and gave strategic updates on outreach, 
service area optimization, time share, Satellite Health 
outpatient services, employer direct program, parcel 
tax renewal 2017, population health, community 
opinion survey and philanthropy. 
Ms. Nevins urges that everyone on the Committee 
make a donation to the Hospital in response to the 
latest fundraising request. 
 
Responding to questions, Ms. Donaldson explained 
the increased volumes and downturn of margins at 
Home Health. 
 
Ms. Mather will present on the Staff Forums at the 
Board meeting on January 7, 2016. 

  

5. FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MONTH 
ENDING OCT. 31, 2015 

Jensen Inform 
 

 

 Mr. Fogg asked that a quarterly proforma on Home 
Health be included in financials on a quarterly basis. 
Mr. Jensen shared that SVH experienced a $300,000 
Medi-Cal profit on fully allocated costs last year.   
 
Paying down the lines of credit was discussed. 

  

 6. YEAR TO DATE OPERATING 
 PROJECTION 

Jensen Inform/Action  



3 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTIONS FOLLOW-
UP 

 Mr. Jensen distributed a handout on YTD Operating 
Projections including actuals though October 2015 
and budget numbers for November 2015 to June 
2016. 

Mr. Jensen will revise 
the Projection as 
discussed and distribute 
to Committee.  

 

 7. ADJOURN Fogg   
 Meeting adjourned at 6:00pm. 

 
  

 



 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
MINUTES 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2015 
8:30AM 

 
 ADMINISTRATION CONFERENCE ROOM 

347 ANDRIEUX STREET, SONOMA, CA 95476 
 

AGENDA ITEM RECOMMENDATION 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of 
everyone in our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Hohorst  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION 
 At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on 

the agenda. It is recommended that you keep your comments to three minutes or 
less. Under State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or 
acted upon by the Committee at this time. For items appearing on the agenda, 
the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for 
Committee consideration.  

Hohorst  

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
• Minutes from 9.22.15 

Hohorst Action 
MOTION to 
approve by 
Boerum.  All in 
favor. 

4. POLICY GOVERNING BIDDING FOR FACILITY CONTRACTS 
Bring forward to January 7, 2016 Board meeting as action item 
 

Hohorst 
 

Action 
MOTION to 
approve by 
Boerum.  All in 
favor. 

5.  POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Bring forward to January 7, 2016 Board meeting as action item 

Hohorst Action 
MOTION to 
approve by 
Boerum.  All in 
favor. 

6. ADJOURN 
  

Hohorst  

 



1 

+ 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

QUALITY COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, November 18, 2015 
Schantz Conference Room 

 

 
Committee Members 
Present 

Committee Members 
Present cont. 

Members Not Present Admin Staff /Other 

Jane Hirsch 
Carol Snyder 
Michael Mainardi 
Cathy Webber 
Ingrid Sheets 
Susan Idell 
H. Eisenstark 
Kelsey Woodward 
Brian Sebastian, M.D. 
Keith Chamberlin, MD, MBA 

 Joshua Rymer 
 

Leslie Lovejoy 
Robbie Cohen, M.D. 
Michelle Donaldson 
Scott Perryman, M.D. 
Gigi Betta 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS Hirsch  
The meeting was called to order at 5:00pm   
2. PUBLIC COMMENT Hirsch  
No public comment. None  
3. CONSENT CALENDAR Hirsch Action 
QC Minutes, 10.28.15 
 

 MOTION to approve Consent by Idell and 
2nd by Mainardi.  All in favor. 

4. BARIATRIC SERVICE AT SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL Dr. Scott Perryman Inform 

Dr. Scott Perryman gave an engaging presentation on Bariatric 
services available at SVH.  Topics included the rise of obesity in 
America, the three Bariatric surgery procedures offered and the 
benefits of the Destination Care Model. 

  

5. POLICY & PROCEDURE 
There are no Policies or Procedures for this meeting. 

Lovejoy Action 

   
6. QUALITY REPORT NOVEMBER 2015 Lovejoy Inform/Action  

Ms. Lovejoy reported on the Leapfrog Survey Report results and a   



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 
detailed report on areas of opportunity for improvement 2015-16. 
In the interest of time, Ms. Lovejoy gave an abbreviated Quality 
Report. 
7. CLOSING COMMENTS Hirsch   
   

8. ADJOURN Hirsch  

   

9. UPON ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR OPEN SESSION Hirsch  

   

10. CLOSED SESSION Sebastian Action 

Medical Staff Credentialing & Peer Review Report 
Calif. Health & Safety Code § 32155   

11. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION Hirsch Inform/Action 
There was no credentialing report.   

12.  ADJOURN 
 Meeting adjourned at 6:00pm 

Hirsch 
 

 

 



 
8. 
 

CHA PRESENTATION 
UPDATES AND PREDICTION 

OF 
HEALTHCARE IN CALIFORNIA 



Update on a Rapidly 
Changing Healthcare 

Environment  
 

 
Anne McLeod 
Senior Vice President, Health Policy and Innovation  
 
California Hospital Association   
February 4, 2016 
 



2 * Estimated Source: OECD Health Data 2015. 

Healthcare Spending – Global (per capita) 

 4,197   4,178   4,981   4,495   4,126   3,678   3,841   3,469   3,074   3,312   3,248  

 4,516   2,084  

 882  
 636  

 779  
 1,142   713  

 1,084  
 1,278   945   877  

 1,074  

 1,630  
 856  

 270   726   649  
 625   791   623   760  

 277  

9,787 

7,892 

6,719 

5,401 5,631 5,469 
5,179 5,344 

4,975 5,017 
4,402 

0 

1,000 

2,000 

3,000 

4,000 

5,000 

6,000 

7,000 

8,000 

9,000 

10,000 

11,000 

US SWIZ NOR NLD SWE GER DEN AUS CAN* BEL FRA 

Out-of-pocket spending 

Private spending 

Public spending 

D
ol

la
rs

 ($
U

S)
 



16.9 

9.1 

Health Spending vs Social Spending 



Hospital Care, 42.67% Hospital Care, 32.58%

Physician Services, 20.25%
Physician Services, 21.71%

Other Professional,(4) 7.1%
Other Professional,(4) 7.3%

Home Health Care, 1.01%
Home Health Care, 2.93%

Prescription Drugs, 5.11%
Prescription Drugs, 10.73%

Other Medical Durables and 
Non-durables, 5.88% Other Medical Durables and 

Non-durables, 3.35%

Nursing Home Care, 6.48%
Nursing Home Care, 5.88%

Other,(3) 11.4% Other,(3) 15.5%

1980 2009
Source: Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, Office of the Actuary.  Data released January 6, 2011. 
(1) Excludes medical research and medical facilities construction. 
(2) CMS completed a benchmark revision in 2009, introducing changes in methods, definitions and source data that are applied to the entire time series (back to 1960).  

For more information on this revision, see http://www.cms.gov/nationalhealthexpenddata/downloads/benchmark2009.pdf. 
(3) “Other” includes net cost of insurance and administration, government public health activities, and other personal health care. 
(4) “Other professional” includes dental and other non-physician professional services. 

$235.6B $2,330.1B 

 Source:  American Hospital Association 

National Health Expenditures - By Category 



5 

Providing coverage to more than 12 
million residents – that’s nearly one 
in three Californians, includes half of 
all children 
Access barriers are amplified by the 
Medi-Cal provider rate reductions 
enacted during California’s economic 
downturn 
Expanding coverage without 
ensuring access to needed care 
is a problem 
Facts / backlash  

     Medi-Cal Coverage Expands (ACA) 



6 

The Medi-Cal expansion is driving 
increased demand for health care 
services in California’s hospitals 
More than 200,000 additional Medi-
Cal patients a year are being admitted 
to hospitals for acute care 
Hospital Medi-Cal outpatient visits 
have grown by more than 3.6 million a 
year under the coverage expansion 

         Demand for Services Surges 



7 

The demand for care is driving an 
estimated one million more Medi-Cal 
enrollees to hospital emergency rooms 
Reduced payments to primary care 
doctors has reduced access to basic 
medical care  
Many Medi-Cal patients turn to 
overcrowded hospital emergency rooms 

               Coverage Does Not Equal Access 



-40 

-35 

-30 

-25 

-20 

-15 

-10 

-5 

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

45 

50 

55 

60 

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Private payer 

Medi-Cal                             
Medicare 

Cost of Providing Care and Services 

2020 

               Medi-Cal Under-Funding Crisis/Cost Shift 

Medi-Cal uncompensated care in 
hospitals exceeds $7 billion a year 
(2015 estimate)  



9 

                        Closing the Gap 

 The hospital fee program will increase  
payments to hospitals by $10 billion in  
2014-2016 (2016 initiative)  

 Section 1115 Waiver to continue support  
for public hospitals through programs where 
they provide the non-federal share  

 



1946-Today 2016 (and Beyond) 

        
New Business Model Emerges 

 



Source: Hill, G., Sarafin, G., and Hagan, S.: “Population Health Management – Hill’s Handbook to the Next Decade in 
Healthcare Technology.” Citi Research, May 14, 2013; and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 

“Population health management 
occurs when a healthcare 
system or network of providers 
works in a coordinated manner 
to improve the overall health, 
health outcomes, and well-being 
of patients across all defined 
care settings under risk-bearing 
arrangements.”  

The healthcare system or 
network of providers may work 
under contractual arrangements 
with another entity such as an 
insurer. 

Population Health Management – A Service 
Delivery Definition 

Population Health 
Management is not: 



Health care leaders will need to adjust their strategy to align  
with the new definitions of success in the New Health Economy 

Drivers of Population Health Management 



Drivers of Population Health Management 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&docid=08tgr3PIAjHDnM&tbnid=DrDjg3XJ5YB8eM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://federalprocurementcoach.wordpress.com/2013/01/17/walmart-to-buy-domestic/&ei=0omfUa7zOK38yAGv0ICYAg&bvm=bv.47008514,d.aWc&psig=AFQjCNH0M0Bi8MRqFTw9Av-sJEmn5fIHpA&ust=1369496400826539�
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&docid=J0J9lREx-DGy1M&tbnid=E_i-XVY6sZpLBM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.ambercrestinvestments.com/wp/davita-expands-operations-in-portugal-and-poland/&ei=HIqfUfvXOPLCyAHaiIGICA&bvm=bv.47008514,d.aWc&psig=AFQjCNHiPknk2KAP2ns1VDRr3WZA54v93w&ust=1369496474324792�
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&docid=t3bKXGab6hrwqM&tbnid=hwE9mmb3_MIhrM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.carnegiesciencecenter.org/exhibits/highmark-sportsworks/&ei=HdKfUfPWMoye8QSI_4DgDA&bvm=bv.47008514,d.aWc&psig=AFQjCNHJi0qjkOC66iVJSnGWotZVSXZaEA&ust=1369514906569936�


Clinical 
Components 

Business 
Components 

Chronic Disease 
Management and 

Evidence-Based Practices 

Claims and EMR 
Management/Analytics 

Network Management and 
Operations 

Business Intelligence/ 
Actuarial Sciences 

Contracting Arrangements 

Population Health Management –  
Clinical and Business Components 

Population 
Health  

Managment 



Realizing the 
promise of 
population health 
management  
will require the 
application of  
the most difficult 
integration 
mechanisms 

Population Health Management –  
Integration Mechanisms 



Population Health Management – Segmentation: 
Identification, Stratification, Prioritization 



At-Risk &  
Stable 

Healthy 

• Home monitoring 
• Extended team care planning, medication compliance, scheduled reviews  

and tracking of interventions 
• Patient and family member contribution to care team notes 
• Predictive and prescriptive views of outcomes and cost 

 

• Health risk assessments, targeted calls, emails, text invitations 
   and routinized contact 
• Online education, health coaching and group initiatives prediabetes,  
   blood pressure control, weight management, etc. 
 

• Wearable health monitoring technologies, mobile, smartphone-enabled 
   devices  
• Reminders for annual wellness check-ups and cancer screening services  
• Telehealth services provide easy access and routine interventions 
• Patient portals and personal health records – results review and tracking 
 

• 24/7 services needed to keep patients in their home, avoid unnecessary 
   hospitalizations, support family caregivers and reduce the burden 
   on family physicians 
• Patients and caregivers benefit from electronic communications of Advance 
   Directives and Powers of Attorney, specialized care pathways, pain 
   management protocols, etc. 
• New initiatives examining the role of tele-hospice 

Critical 

Chronic Simple 
 & 

Complex 

Population Health Management – Segmentation 



• Fostering clinician 
leadership 

• Network development and 
management 

• PHM and associated risk 
• Clinical, business and 

consumer intelligence 
• Innovation and 

transformation 
• Technology 

Clinical Leadership – New Competencies 



• Systems theory and analysis 
• Use of information technology 
• Cross-disciplinary training 

and multidisciplinary teams 
• Expanded knowledge areas 
• Interpersonal and 

communication skills  

Physician Core Competencies Next-Generation Core Competencies 

• Medical knowledge 
• Patient care 
• Practice-based learning and 

improvement 
• System-based practice 
• Professionalism 
• Interpersonal and 

communication skills 
• Use of informatics 

From Top 
Doctor to 
Physician 

Leader 

The competencies that make an individual a good physician are not the same 
competencies that make a physician a great leader. However, the heart of being a 

good physician leader is being a good physician. 

Source: Combes, J.R., Arespacochaga, E.: Lifelong Learning: Physician Competency Development. American Hospital 
Association’s Physician Leadership Forum, Chicago, IL, June 2012. 
 

Physician Leadership Imperative 



Questions? 
 



Thank you! 

 
Anne McLeod 
Sr. Vice President  
Health Policy/Innovation 
amcleod@calhospital.org 
916-552-7536 

21 

mailto:amcleod@calhospital.org�


 
9. 
 

RESOLUTION No. 327 
1206(b) CLINIC 
FORMATION 



 1 

 
To:  Sonoma Valley Health Care District Board of Directors 
 
From: Ken Jensen, Chief Financial Officer and Michelle Donaldson, Chief Revenue Officer 
 
Date:   February 4, 2016 
    
Re: Resolution No. 327 

 

Action to Establish 1206 (b) Clinic 
______________________________________________________________________ 

This letter to the SVHCD Board is to summarize and obtain approval for: Action to Establish a District 
H&S Code Section 1206 (b) Clinic in furtherance of the District’s Community Needs Assessment for 
Patient Access to Primary and Specialty Care. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Overview 

We wish to develop strategic methods to support specific physician practices both new and current to remain in 
our community and provide our population with access to care. 
California Health & Safety Code Section 1206 provides statutory mechanisms for the operation of Hospital or 
District affiliated primary care services, and non-profit community based primary care and specialty clinics.  
Leadership proposes a 1206(b) District established clinic for our physicians who wish to work under an 
alternative to private practice or the 1206 (d) clinic such as Prima Medical Foundation.  As seen in our 
preliminary discussions, the district operated clinic will also serve as a physician recruitment tool for primary 
physicians, specialists and mid-level providers. 
 
We wish to begin the 1206(b) clinic with Dr. Parinaz Azari, Pain Management Specialist whose Physician 
Needs Assessment completed with Crimson Market Advantage indicates that there is an unmet demand for 
services in Sonoma County.  This information is conclusive to the issue of accessibility for patients to obtain 
appointments and much needed services in a timely manner, therefore leaving our area.  As we are seeing this in 
pain management, we also understand this to be happening in other areas such as primary care, OBGYN, and 
other specialties.  Our strategy is to begin with pain management services and expand to primary care and 
OBGYN within the next 12 months.  We have had other specialist who are interested in this model which 
include Orthopedics and ENT which we will complete the due diligence within the next 12 month timeframe as 
well.  Our model is to establish a closed network of physicians to provide our community with the much needed 
primary and specialty services without having to leave our area. 
 
A financial proforma will be established for each physician and the collective physician development programs.   
 
 
 
 



 2 

Request for approval by the SVHCD Board for the formation and operation of a 1206(b) clinic 
authorizing SVH Management to: 
 

A. Approve Budget: TBD to encompass the [annual / next fiscal year….] 1206(b) program.  
 

A proforma is being developed for each of the projects planned for implementation. Management will 
develop a new proforma for each new addition to the clinic and will keep to the overall budget.  

 
B.  Approve contracts for implementation of the clinic as budgeted including: 
 
• Professional Services Agreements.  Contracts with physicians establishing a basis for them to work with 

the clinic and for the District to pay for their services based on compensation market surveys, including 
benefits and productivity incentives. 

 
• Asset Purchase agreements.  Agreements with individual physicians to purchase their hard assets to be 

used in the clinics based on a market based valuation of the assets.  The District will not pay for soft 
assets like goodwill or charts. 

 
• Billing Agreement.  A Billing contract will be signed with MMPC, an established local physician 

practice billing service. 
 

• Management agreement.  A management contract will be signed to hire the staff and manage the day to 
day operations of the clinic settings. 

 
• Space Leases.  The District will sign sub-leases for the on-boarding 1206b physicians to transition the 

offices to the clinic.  The offices have been consolidated in various locations around the community to 
increase access to care and gain some economies of scale and promote ease of physician and patient 
access to the Hospital.  

  
• Letter of intent.  For many of the physicians a letter of intent may be signed once Management knows 

the key terms of agreement prior to finalizing a services agreement. 
 

• Implement and execute operational agreements within the established budget, and all related documents 
and agreements, deemed beneficial and necessary by Management, consistent with establishment and 
operation of a District 1206(b) clinic.   

 

 
Timeline 

• 1206b recommendation to Board     February 4th

• LOI completed       February 11
, 2016 
th

• Operational, management and asset purchase agreement  February 25
, 2016 

th

• Contractual work, PSA finalization, Billing Agreement  March 24
, 2016 

th

• Space lease completed      March 24
, 2016 

th

• 1206b budget for Board approval (pending recommendation) April 7
, 2016 

th

 
, 2016 

 
Attachment 

Resolution No. 327 



Page 1 February 4, 2016     Res. No. 327 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION No. 327 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 1206B CLINIC TO BEGIN 2016 FISCAL 
YEAR FOR THE PURSPOSE OF PROVIDING SERVICES TO THE PATIENTS IN THE 

COMMUNITY 
 
 
WHEREAS, by resolution, adopted by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Sonoma Valley Health Care 
District (the “District”) on February 4th

 

, 2016, the Board determined and declared that public interest and 
necessity demanded the need to establish a 1206b clinic determined by the Health and Safety code 1206b allows 
for districts to establish a clinic for the purpose of providing clinical services to the community and  

WHEREAS, Sonoma Valley Health Care district wants to establish such a clinic for its primary service area. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of directors for SVHCD does hereby resolve the establishment of a 1206b 
clinic  
 
WHEREAS, at such election there was submitted to and approved by the requisite two-thirds (2/3) vote of the 
qualified electors of the District a question as to the development of such clinic for the community of Sonoma 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Health and Safety Code 1206b (the “Act”), the District is empowered to 
control management of such practice 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Recitals

 

. All of the recitals herein are true and correct. To the extent that the recitals relate to findings 
and determinations of the Board, the Board declares such findings or determinations to be made thereby. 

Section 2. General Authority

 

. The Chair, the Secretary, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer, and their respective designees, are each hereby authorized, empowered and directed in the name and on 
behalf of the District to take any and all steps which they or any of them might deem necessary or appropriate in 
order to give effect to this resolution. 

Section 3. Effective Date
 

. This resolution shall take effect immediately on and after its adoption. 

 
* * * * * * * * 



Page 2 February 4, 2016     Res. No. 327 

  
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Sonoma Valley Health Care District, a political 
subdivision of the State of California, on this 4th

 
 day of February 2016, by the following vote: 

HIRSCH  
HOHORST 
RYMER 
NEVINS 
BOERUM 
 
 
 

   
Jane Hirsch 
Chair, Board of Directors 
Sonoma Valley Health Care District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
   
Peter Hohorst 
1st

Sonoma Valley Health Care District 
 Vice Chair, Board of Directors 

 
 
 



 
10. 

 
SATELLITE 

HEALTHCARE LEASE 



1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting Date:   February 4th

Prepared by:  Michelle Donaldson, Chief Revenue Officer   

, 2016  

Agenda Item Title:  Satellite Healthcare lease of space 

 

Recommendations:  
Enclosed is a recommendation regarding entering into an agreement with Satellite Healthcare 
to lease space from Sonoma Valley Hospital in order to construct an outpatient dialysis unit.   
 
Background: 
An active member of our community brought to our attention the need for an outpatient 
dialysis unit due to the increased need for transportation.  After discussions, Satellite 
Healthcare has requested that a dialysis service be placed in our facility thus launching a pilot 
program aligned with their strategic plan to bring dialysis back to the patient in a chronic care 
setting.  A study of need completed by Satellite Healthcare concluded that within 5 miles of 
Sonoma Valley Hospital there are currently 50 end stage renal disease residents who require 
dialysis an average of 3 times a week.   
 
Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 
The consequences of a negative action would be to continue the current state of our 
community. Our residents cannot receive the care and treatment they need to maintain and 
improve their quality of life. This issue was solidified by community focus group meetings held 
by Sonoma Valley Hospital and Satellite Healthcare in July 2015. 
 
Financial Impact: 
The financial impact of this recommendation is as follows: 

• Rent revenue of $81,768 per year with an increase of 2.5% per year for 5 years plus 2 
options of extensions for 3 years and 2 years 

• Timeshare rent of $6,000 per year with increases as clinic volumes increase 
• Santa Rosa Nephrology Specialist are now local to provide services to our community 
• Vascular surgery working with Nephrology for vascular access services to patients  
• Cost of $35,000 from Sonoma Valley Hospital towards make ready of the space 

 
 
Attachment: 
Please see enclosed lease and addendum 





































































620\1253486.7  

ADDENDUM 
TO THE AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION 

STANDARD INDUSTRIAL/COMMERCIAL MULTI-TENANT LEASE – NET 

 
WITH SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

THIS ADDENDUM TO STANDARD INDUSTRIAL/COMMERCIAL - MULTI-TENANT 
LEASE - NET (“Addendum”) is made and entered into by and between SONOMA VALLEY 
HOSPITAL DISTRICT (“Lessor”), and SATELLITE HEALTHCARE, INC., a California 
corporation (“Lessee”), as of the date set forth on the first page of that certain Standard 
Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease - Net (the “Lease”) by and between Lessor and 
Lessee to which this Addendum is attached and incorporated.  The terms, covenants, and 
conditions set forth herein are intended to and shall have the same force and effect as if set forth 
at length in the body of the Lease.  Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms as used 
herein shall have the same meanings as given thereto in the Lease.  To the extent that the 
provisions of this Addendum A are inconsistent with any provisions of the Lease, the provisions 
of this Addendum A shall prevail. 

50. Measurement of Premises.  Prior to the Commencement Date (as defined in 1.3), Lessee 
shall have the right to independently measure and calculate the area of the Premises.  Should 
Lessee’s independent measurement using BOMA Standards, identify a discrepancy between the 
actual square footage and the square footage defined in the Lease, Lessor and Lessee shall in 
good faith cooperate with each other to determine a mutually agreeable square footage 
calculation.  In the event Lessor and Lessee are unable to agree on the measurement of the 
Premises, the final determination shall be made through a three party arbitration, as follows: 
within ten (10) days of the parties determining by giving written notice from either party to the 
other that they cannot agree on the final measurement of the Premises, each party shall specify in 
writing to the other the name and address of a person to act as the architect on its behalf.  If 
either party fails to timely appoint an architect, the determination of the timely appointed 
architect shall be final and binding.  The two architects shall have ten (10) days from the day of 
their respective appointments (the “Determination Period”) to make their respective 
determinations and agree on the final measurement of the Premises.  If the two architects 
selected by the Lessor and Lessee cannot reach agreement on the final measurement of the 
Premises, such architects shall within five (5) business days jointly appoint an impartial third 
architect with at least ten (10) years of experience in measuring the size of premises, and the 
final measurement of the Premises shall be established by the three architects in accordance with 
the following procedures: The architect selected by each party shall state in writing his 
determination of the architect.  The first two architects shall arrange for the simultaneous 
delivery of their determinations to the third architect no later than ten (10) days after the 
expiration of the Determination Period.  The role of the third architect shall be to select which of 
the two proposed determinations most closely approximates the third architect’s determination of 
the final measurement of the Premises, and shall have no more than five (5) business days in 
which to select the final determination.  The determination chosen by the third architect shall 
constitute the decision of the architects and be final and binding on the parties.  Each party shall 
pay the cost of its own architect and shall share equally the cost of the third architect. 

51. Parking.  Lessor shall provide Lessee the parking lot adjacent to the Premises to Lessee 
for "Satellite Healthcare Patients Only" use and not less than 3 parking spaces per 1,000 square 
feet of space.  Lessee’s employees may park in Lessor’s designated employee parking lot. All 
parking provided to Lessee shall be at no cost to Lessee.   



620\1253486.7  

52. Term.  The Original Term shall commence upon the date Lessor delivers possession of 
the Premises in the condition required under the Lease (“Commencement Date”) and shall 
expire on the last day of the sixtieth (60th

53. Early Possession Period.  From and after the execution of the Lease, Lessee shall have 
access to the Premises until the Commencement Date (the “Early Possession Period”), without 
the obligation to pay Base Rent or Common Area Operating Expenses (defined in Lease 
Paragraph 4.2(a)), for the purposes of designing, planning, construction and installing all Tenant 
Improvements, underground plumbing and sewer, furniture, fixtures and equipment necessary 
for its operations that are not part of Landlord’s Work.  All terms and conditions of the Lease, 
exclusive of payment of Base Rent or Common Area Operating Expenses shall apply to the 
Early Possession Period, as if the Lease were in full force and effect.  Upon the full execution of 
the Lease, Lessor will grant Lessee permission to perform inspections of the roof and mechanical 
systems by third party contractors. Further, Lessor agrees to provide Lessee with any inspection 
reports in its possession that have been performed on the Premises within the prior two (2) years.  

) month following the Commencement Date 
(“Expiration Date”).  Upon determination of the Commencement Date, and upon either parties 
request, Lessor and Lessee shall execute a mutually agreeable memorandum in the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit "D". 

54. Rent Commencement Date.  Base Rent and Common Area Operating Expenses shall 
commence one hundred twenty (120) days following the Commencement Date. 

55. Revisions to Base Rent and Lessee’s Share.  In the event the square footage of the 
Premises is revised pursuant to Paragraph 50 above, Base Rent and Lessee’s Share shall be 
adjusted accordingly. 

56. Base Rent Schedule.  Subject to Paragraph 55 above, Lessee shall pay Base Rent upon 
the following schedule: 

Period Base Rent/sq. ft./month Monthly Base Rent 
Months 1 – 4* $0.00 $0.00 
Months 5 – 12 $2.00 $6,814.00 
Months 13 – 24 $2.05 $6,984.00 
Months 25 – 36 $2.10 $7,158.00 
Months 37– 48 $2.15 $7,337.00 
Months 49 – 60 $2.21 $7,521.00 

*The first four full calendar months and any partial period prior to such four month 
period if the Commencement Date does not fall on the first day of the month.   

 In addition, Lessor shall waive an additional three months of Base Rent upon issuance of 
occupancy permits required by all governmental agencies. 

57. Condition.  Lessor shall deliver the Premises to Lessee in the condition described in 
Exhibit B-1 and with the roof water tight and the Premises in compliance with all applicable laws 
and codes and free of Hazardous Materials.  Notwithstanding the Lease to the contrary, any costs 
incurred by Lessor to deliver the Premises in the condition required herein shall not be included 
as part of the Common Area Operating Expenses (as defined in Lease Section 4.2(a)) of the 
Lease or passed through to Lessee as part of the Common Area maintenance and repair costs.  

58. Common Area Changes.  In exercising its rights under Paragraph 2.10, Lessor shall 
minimize interference with Lessee’s use of and business operations in the Premises. 



620\1253486.7  

59. Exclusions to Common Area Operating Expenses.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary, Common Area Operating Expenses shall not include (i) those expenses listed in Exhibit 
“C” attached hereto, (ii) management expenses/fees in excess of 3% of the annual Base Rent for 
the Premises, (iii) Permitted Capital Expenditures (as defined below), and (iv) capital 
improvements associated with mechanical, roof or parking lot repair except as pursuant to 
Paragraph 7.1(d).  “Permitted Capital Expenditures” mean only those costs identified as 
capital expenditures under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and that are (a) 
reasonably intended to reduce Common Area Operating Expenses or water and/or energy 
consumption; (b) required after the  date of the Lease under any Applicable Law that was not 
applicable to the Building at the time it was originally constructed; or (c) for replacement of any 
equipment or improvement needed to operate and/or maintain the Building and the Common Areas 
in the same condition as at the Commencement Date, ordinary wear and tear and damage from 
casualty or condemnation excepted.  If the cost of a Permitted Capital Expenditure exceeds Ten 
Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), then such cost shall be amortized over its useful life, and the 
amount included in monthly Common Area Operating Expenses shall be limited to the monthly 
amortized cost thereof.  The foregoing shall not apply to any particular capital expenditure triggered 
by Lessee as a result of Lessee’s actual or proposed use, change in use, or modification to the 
Premises, which capital expenditures shall be Lessee’s sole responsibility. 

60. Audit.  Tenant shall have ongoing rights to review and audit Lessor’s books and records 
with respect to Common Area Operating Expenses. Not more often than once each calendar year, 
Lessee, upon thirty (30) days advance written notice thereof to Lessor, at Lessee’s sole cost and 
expense, may retain an independent certified public accountant reasonably acceptable to Lessor, 
to review and audit Lessor’s books and records with regard to the Common Area Operating 
Expenses for the Project and the calculations of Lessee’s Share thereof.  If it is reasonably 
determined by such auditors that Lessee overpaid its share of Common Area Operating 
Expenses, Lessor shall refund to Lessee the amount of such overpayment within thirty (30) days.  
If it is reasonably determined by such auditors that Lessee underpaid its share of any increase in 
Common Area Operating Expenses, Lessee shall pay to Lessor the amount of such deficiency 
within thirty (30) days.  If it is reasonably determined by such auditors that Lessee overpaid its 
share of Common Area Operating Expenses by more than five percent (5%) for the applicable 
calendar year, Lessor shall reimburse Lessee for the reasonable costs of Lessee’s audit. 

61. Hazardous Substances.  Lessor will deliver copies of all the hazardous material reports 
in its possession addressing the condition of the property, including the land, and if applicable, 
the groundwater under and about the Building to Lessee prior to Lease execution. Lessor will 
indemnify and hold Lessee harmless for any claims, costs or liabilities associated with any 
hazardous materials (collectively, “Claims”) existing in, on, under, or about the Building which 
were not caused by Lessee, and Lessee will indemnify and hold Lessor harmless for Claims 
caused by Lessee.  To the best of Lessor’s knowledge, no Hazardous Substances are present in, 
on, under or about the Premises or the Project, and no action, proceeding, or claim is pending or 
threatened concerning any Hazardous Substances or pursuant to any Hazardous Substances laws.  
Lessor shall defend, indemnify and hold Lessee and anyone claiming under Lessee harmless 
from and against all claims, penalties, expenses and liabilities, including attorneys’ and 
consultants’ fees and costs, arising out of or caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by 
or in connection with any Hazardous Substances in, on, under or  about the Premises or Project, 
except to the extent the same results from Lessee’s release or admission of Hazardous 
Substances in or about the Premises in violation of Hazardous Substances laws.  For the purposes 
of the indemnity provisions hereof, any acts or omissions of Lessor or anyone claiming under 



620\1253486.7  

Lessor (whether or not they are negligent, intentional or unlawful) shall be strictly attributable to 
Lessor.  Lessor’s obligations under this Paragraph 61 shall survive the termination or expiration 
of the Lease. 

62. Lessor’s Obligations.  Lessor, at its sole cost, shall be responsible on an ongoing basis 
for the structural elements of the building, (including but not limited to, the structural portions of 
the roof, roof screens, roof screen penetrations), foundation, footings, floor slab, load bearing 
walls and exterior walls to comply with all governmental laws, rules, regulations orders, building 
codes and/or ADA requirements. Lessor shall keep the exterior walls and windows maintained in 
good, clean condition, provided that damage cause by Lessee shall be repaired by Lessee, at its 
sole cost and expense. 

63. Alterations.  Lessor grants Lessee the right to perform nonstructural alterations to the 
Premises with Lessor’s written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditional or 
delayed. Lessee shall not be required to remove such Alterations at the end of the Lease Term or 
any exercised Option Term unless Lessor designates in writing at least ninety (90) days before 
the end of the Lease Term or any exercised Option Term, that Lessee is to remove such 
alterations and restore the Premises to the condition preceding the installation of such 
Alterations. Lessor’s failure to provide such written notice within the time period described 
above shall be deemed Lessor’s election not to have such Alterations removed.   

64. Insurance. 
(a) Carried by Lessee.  The coverage amounts specified in the Lease shall not be 

increased during the term of the Lease, including any renewal term. Lessee shall not be required 
to carry earthquake or flood insurance. 

(b) Carried by Lessor.  Lessor shall maintain and keep public liability coverage 
under a commercial general liability policy with combined limits of not less than $ 2,000,000 per 
occurrence and shall insure all building shell and site improvements within the Project under an 
all risk policy. 

65. Real Property Taxes.  Real Property Taxes shall not include (A) interest or penalties 
incurred by Lessor as a result of Lessor’s late payment of Real Property Taxes, or (B) franchise, 
transfer, gift, inheritance, estate or net income taxes imposed upon Lessor. 

66. Utilities and Services.  Notwithstanding Paragraph 11 of the Lease to the contrary, in the 
event utilities or services are interrupted for more than five (5) consecutive days, Rent shall abate 
during the entire period of interruption until such utilities or services are restored. 

67. Assignment and Subletting.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease and 
provided Tenant delivers written notice to Landlord within ten (10) business days of such 
transfer, Tenant may, with Landlord’s consent and not subject to any recapture, legal or transfer 
fees, or bonus rent provisions, sublet the Premises or assign the Lease to related physicians 
and/or joint venture partnerships or limited liability companies between Lessee and affiliated 
physicians and Tenant shall also have the right at any time to sublease or otherwise permit 
occupancy of all or any portion of its space to an affiliated physician, without the requirement of 
obtaining Landlord’s consent. Any of the above are referenced hereafter as “Permitted 
Transfer” and the transferee is referenced as “Permitted Transferee”. Notwithstanding any 
sublease, Lessee shall not be relieved of its obligations under the Lease.  Notwithstanding 
Paragraph 12.2(g) of the Lease to the contrary, in the event of a transfer to a Permitted 
Transferee, any Option granted to the original Lessee by the Lease shall also be transferred to 
such Permitted Transferee as if such Permitted Transferee where the original Lessee. 



620\1253486.7  

68. Late Charge.  Notwithstanding Paragraph 13.4 of the Lease to the contrary, Lessor will 
not assess a late charge until Lessor has given written notice of Lessee’s late payment for the 
first late payment in any twelve (12) month period and after Lessee has not cured such late 
payment within three (3) days from receipt of such notice.  No other notices will be required 
during the following twelve (12) months for a late charge to be incurred. 

69. Lessor’s Default.   
(a) If Lessor fails in performing any of its non-structural obligations and as a result of 

such failure to repair, there is a clear and imminent danger of personal injury or substantial 
property damage to the Premises, and such default continues for ten (10) days after written notice 
to Lessor, Lessee may perform the non-structural repairs and the amount of such reasonable 
costs and expenses incurred by Lessee shall be paid by Lessor within thirty (30) days after 
written demand by Lessee. 

(b) With respect to Lessor’s obligations the failure of which do not present a clear 
and imminent danger of personal injury or substantial property damage to the Premises or 
interruption of Lessee’s operations, Lessor shall have thirty (30) days after written notice from 
Lessee to repair.  In the event Lessor fails to complete repairs within such thirty (30) day period, 
Lessee may, but is not obligated to, perform said repairs and the amount of such reasonable costs 
and expenses incurred by Lessee shall be paid by Lessor within thirty (30) days after written 
demand by Lessee. 

70. Original Lessee.  Notwithstanding Paragraph 39.2, for the purposes of the Lease, a 
Permitted Transferee shall be deemed an original Lessee and any Option granted to the original 
Lessee under the Lease may be exercised by such a Permitted Transferee. 

71. Building Signage.  To the extent permitted by applicable laws, Lessee shall be entitled to 
install eyebrow signage above the main entrance to the Premises on the portico of the former 
emergency room porte cochere, subject to Lessor’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed. All costs associated with Lessee’s signage design, installation and 
maintenance shall be at Lessee’s sole expense. 

72. Lessee Improvements.  Lessee, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, shall have the right to 
construct those certain improvements as set forth and in accordance with Exhibit “B”.  Lessor 
shall cooperate and coordinate with Lessee for the installation of the Lessee Improvements, 
including, without limitation, coordinate with power re-routing, re-circuiting and temporary 
power shutdowns for affected panel boards. 

73. Occupancy Requirements.  Lessee shall have full access to the Premises seven (7) days 
per week, twenty-four (24) hours per day subject to all applicable City codes, provided, however, 
that Lessee's normal daily hours of business operation shall be 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.   Except in 
the case of emergency access for use of hospital emergency exits and access to the existing 
PBX/data storage enclosure, Lessor shall have access to the Premises upon twenty-four (24) 
hours written notice.  All non-emergency access shall be in compliance with Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA).   

74. Use Contingency.  This Lease shall be contingent upon Lessee receiving all 
commercially reasonable discretionary approvals (the scope and nature of which shall be decided 
in Lessee's reasonable discretion) permitting its use of the Premises; Lessor, at no additional 
expense, shall reasonably cooperate with Lessee in obtaining the approvals and permits.   The 
contingencies described above shall be removed within 120 days following the full execution of 
the Lease.  If approvals are not obtained within the aforementioned contingency period, Lessee 



620\1253486.7  

may cancel the Lease with no further obligations on either party, except that Lessor shall return 
the deposit and prepaid rent to Lessee within ten (10) days of such lease termination. 

75. Loading Access.  Lessor shall provide an area reasonably acceptable to Lessee for third 
party delivery access to the Premises for Lessee deliveries as shown on the approved space plan. 

76. Option to Extend. 

(a) Lessee shall have two (2) options to extend the Original Term for a period of 
three (3) years for the first option and two (2) years for the second option (each an “Extension 
Term”), subject to Lessee’s advance written notice to Lessor at least six (6) months prior to the 
expiration of the Original Term or subsequent Extension Term, as the case may be, of Lessee’s 
intent to exercise its option to renew the term of the Lease.  Base Rent during each option period 
shall be determined pursuant to Paragraphs 75(c) through 75(e). 

(b) Notwithstanding Paragraph 39.2 of the Lease to the contrary, the options this 
Paragraph 74 may be assigned to or exercised by any Permitted Transferee. 

(c) At the beginning of each Extension Term, the Base Rent shall be adjusted to 95% 
of Fair Market Value Rent (as determined below). After the first year of each Extension Term, 
the Base Rent shall increase by 2% annually through the balance of the term of such Extension 
Term. 

(d) For purposes of determining Base Rent applicable to the first year of an Extension 
Term, “Fair Market Value Rent” shall mean the rental rate per square foot for medical use 
space comparable to the Premises in building type and age in the Lynwood area of Los Angeles 
County, California for leases being entered into at or about the time the determination is being 
made and adjusted to reflect the change if any, in market rates being experienced indicating the 
rates at or about this time of the commencement of the renewal term, taking into account and 
being adjusted for Lessee concessions, brokerage commissions, Lessee improvement allowances, 
existing improvements in the Premises (where Lessor does not have the right to have Lessee 
remove) as compared to the market comparables, the method of allocating and who pays for 
Common Area Operating Expenses, and the term of the lease being compared in relation to the 
renewal term. 

(e) Within ten (10) days of the parties determining by giving written notice from 
either party to the other that they cannot agree on Fair Market Value Rent, each shall specify in 
writing to the other the name and address of a person to act as the appraiser on its behalf.  Each 
such person shall be a commercial real estate appraiser with at least five (5) years of experience 
with the prevailing market rents for the area in which the Premises are located.  If either party 
fails to timely appoint an appraiser, the determination of the timely appointed appraiser shall be 
final and binding.  The two appraisers shall have thirty (30) days from the day of their respective 
appointments (the “Determination Period”) to make their respective determinations and agree 
on the Fair Market Value Rent.  If the two appraisers selected by the Lessor and Lessee cannot 
reach agreement on the Fair Market Value Rent, such appraisers shall within five (5) business 
days jointly appoint an impartial third appraiser with qualifications similar to those of the first 
two appraisers, and the Fair Market Value Rent shall be established by the three appraisers in 
accordance with the following procedures: The appraiser selected by each party shall state in 
writing his determination of the Fair Market Value Rent, which determination will provide for 
periodic adjustments to the Base Rent if such appraiser believes that such adjustments are 
appropriate.  The first two appraisers shall arrange for the simultaneous delivery of their 
determinations to the third appraiser no later than ten (10) days after the expiration of the 



620\1253486.7  

Determination Period.  The role of the third appraiser shall be to select which of the two 
proposed determinations most closely approximates the third appraiser's determination of the 
Fair Market Value Rent, and shall have no more than ten (10) days in which to select the final 
determination.  The determination chosen by the third appraiser shall constitute the decision of 
the appraisers and be final and binding on the parties.  Each party shall pay the cost of its own 
appraiser and shall share equally the cost of the third appraiser. 

77.  Biohazardous Storage and Disposal.  Lessee shall, as part of Lessee's improvements, 
construct an approximately fifty (50) square foot area for bio-hazardous material storage.  Lessee 
shall, at Lessee's expense, arrange for regular pickup and disposal of all biohazardous materials 
used by Lessee in accordance with applicable laws.



620\1253486.7  

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
SITE PLAN DEPICTING PREMISES 

 
 



620\1253486.7  

EXHIBIT B 
 

WORK LETTER 
 
1.  Lessor Improvements.  Lessor shall deliver the Premises in the condition described in 
Exhibit B-1 and subject to the terms and conditions stated therein. 
 
2. Lessee Improvements.  Lessee shall have the right, subject to applicable law, to make 
the following improvements to the Premises (“Lessee Improvements”):   
 

 

 Any improvements reasonably required by Lessee in order to construct the Premises 
substantially in the manner shown in Exhibit "A" and as required by Paragraph 73 of the 
Addendum and in accordance and compliance with all applicable laws, covenants or restriction 
of record, regulations, and ordinances in effect on the Commencement Date, including all 
requirements of OSHPD relating to the Use. 

   

3. Lessee Improvement Allowance.  Lessor shall pay to Lessee a $35,000.00 construction 
allowance to be applied to the the total construction costs.  In addition, Lessor will waive 3 
months of rent upon issuance of occupancy by all required governmental agencies. 

4. Changes to Lessee Improvements.  Lessee shall have the right to modify the Lessee 
Improvements provided Lessee first obtain Lessor’s prior written consent, which consent shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
5. End of Term Removal.  Lessee shall not be required to remove the Lessee 
Improvements at the end of the Lease term or sooner termination thereof. 
 
6.  CONTRACTED SERVICES  

6.1 Contracts.  Lessee will engage an Architect to prepare and submit Construction 
Drawings to required government agencies for review and permit issuance.  Prior to submission 
for permit, Lessee’s Architect will submit Construction Drawings including Mechanical, 
Electrical and Plumbing plans to Lessor’s Building Engineer for review and approval.  Lessor 
will review drawings and provide written disapproval or written approval to Lessee’s Architect 
within business 3 days from submission. Lessor’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
or delayed.  If Lessor reasonably disapproves such Construction Drawings, Lessor shall specify 
the reasons for such disapproval, and Lessee shall within ten (10) days after receipt of Lessor's 
notice of disapproval, revise and resubmit such Construction Drawings to Lessor, correcting or 
altering such disapproved items.  This process will be repeated until there are reasonably 
approved Construction Drawings.  If Lessor has not notified Lessee in writing of its approval or 
disapproval within the three-day period, the Construction Drawings shall be deemed approved by 
Lessor. 

(a) Lessee may initiate changes in the Work.  Each such change must 
receive prior written approval of the Lessor within 3 business days from submission, such 
approval not to be reasonably withheld or delayed. Change orders shall be approved by the 
government agencies that issued the construction permit, if required. 



620\1253486.7  

(b) Lesee shall enter into a written construction contract reasonably 
approved by Lessor with a General Contractor which shall comply with Standards of 
Performance of this Work Letter. 

(c) Lessee will arrange for project inspections as required by OSHPD. 

6.2 Contractors Standards of Performance.  Lessee shall hold the contract with the 
General Contractor.  The Work shall be performed only by licensed Contractors and 
Subcontractors. 

(a) Lessee’s Contractor’s and Subcontractors shall be required to procure 
insurance for workman's compensation, commercial automatic liability, and commercial general 
liability in at least $1,000,000 limits per policy. Certificates of such insurance must be received 
by Lessor before the Work is commenced. 

(b) Lessee’s Contractor shall deliver work free from any and all liens, 
claims, chattel, mortgages, and conditional sales agreements of 3rd

(c) Lessee’s Contractor upon completion of the Work, shall furnish Lessor 
with an accurate “as built” plan of the Work as constructed by the General Contractor in both 
electronic and hard copy. 

 parties.  All parties filing liens 
shall provide progress lien release and unconditional lien releases at the end of the project.  

(d) Lessee’s Contractor shall provide and furnish all labor, materials, 
supplies and services for the completion of the Project.  The Work shall be performed in a good 
and workmanlike manner free of defect, shall conform strictly to the Construction Documents 
and shall be performed in such a manner and at such times as not to materially interfere with or 
delay Lessor’s operation of the Building.  

(e) Lessee’s Contractor shall provide a written schedule per a submitted 
phasing plan and confirm the schedule with the Lessor prior to starting the Work at least 72 
hours in advance of commencement of the Construction project.   

i. Upon start of Construction, Lessee’s Contractor will provide 
project updates to the Lessor's Building Engineer on a weekly basis until the completion of the 
project. 

ii. Lessee’s Contractor must submit requests for shut downs of 
utilities to Lessor at least 48 hours in advance of required shut down. 

(f) Lessee’s Contractor shall provide a competent representative on-site 
while construction is occurring to receive notices, orders and instructions and communicate with 
the Lessor. 

(g) Lessee’s Contractor shall at all times from the beginning to the 
completion of the contract, provide all necessary and proper safeguards for Infection Control, 
Security, Fire and Life Safety in and around the area of work in accordance with Hospital’s 
Policies, applicable codes and to the Hospital’s reasonable satisfaction.  The Lessor's Building 
Engineer has authority up to and including stoppage of all work whenever a Security, Fire and 



620\1253486.7  

Life Safety deficiency exists. The Lessee’s Contractor shall take immediate action to correct all 
deficiencies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



620\1253486.7  

EXHIBIT B-1 
 

LESSOR'S WORK 
 

 Lessor shall deliver the Premises to Lessee with the work specified in subsection (a) 
through (l) below completed.  Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for the direct cost and expenses 
incurred in the work necessary to prepare the Premises and deliver the Premises in the condition 
identified below.  Lessee, subject to the Tenant Improvement Allowance, shall reimburse Lessor 
for these costs within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice for payment.  Where more than one 
type of material or structure is indicated, Lessor will have the option of using any one of them. 
 
 (a) Walls.  Interior walls to be removed as shown in Site Plan, Exhibit "A." 
 
 (b) Ceiling.  Exposed to roof structure above. 
 
 (c) Floor. Ground floor concrete slab shall be level, smooth and free of flooring and 
mastic. 
 
 (d) Electrical.  Removed and stubbed to nearest subparcel. 
 
 (e) Telephone.  Main service provided to telephone backboard in common electrical 
or telephone room. 
 
 (f) Sprinklers.  Automatic fire protection system (upright heads only) and fire alarm 
system for building shell only. 
 
 (g) HVAC.  Ducts removed to units in ceiling. 
 
 (h) Water.  In current condition, stubbed to ground floor locations. 
 
 (i) Sewer.  In current condition stubbed to a ground floor location within the 
Premises. 
 
 (j) Parking Lot.  In ADA compliant condition. 
 
 (k) Gas and Air Pipes.  Removed and disconnected and capped at Premises perimeter 
or nearest pipe junction outside of Premises. 
 
 (l) Inpatient Entrance.  Doors removed and installed with new code-compliant 
emergency exit. 
 
 Lessee shall have the right to reasonably approve or disapprove the scope of the proposed 
work, the estimated cost of work, and the proposed contractor for the work prior to the 
commencement of the work to ready the Premises for delivery to Lessee.   



620\1253486.7  

EXHIBIT C 
 

EXCLUSIONS TO OPERATING EXPENSES 
 

1. Interest, or amortization on mortgages or ground or master lease payments; 

2. Legal fees incurred in negotiating tenant leases, and in enforcing tenant leases other than 
this lease; 

 
3. Leasing commissions; 
 
4. The cost of improvements or alterations to tenant spaces; 

5. The cost of providing any service directly to and/or paid directly by any tenant (as 

opposed to services provided to all tenants); 

6. Any costs expressly excluded from Common Area Operating Expenses elsewhere in the 
Lease and the Addendum to Lease; 

 
7. Costs of any items for which Lessor receives reimbursement from insurance proceeds or 

a third party; 
 
8. Attorney fees, costs of environmental investigations, loan origination fees, appraisal, 

closing costs, financing costs on any mortgage or mortgages, ground lease payments, or 
other debt instrument encumbering the Project; 

 
9. Insurance premiums to the extent of any refunds of those premiums; 

10. Any bad debt loss, rent loss, or reserves for bad debt or rent loss; 

11. Interest or penalties resulting from: 

a. Lessor’s negligence or willful misconduct; or 

b. Any amount payable by Lessor resulting from Lessor’s default in its obligations 
under any agreement to which Lessor is a party, including, without limitation, all 
leases now or hereafter in effect with respect to the Real Property of which the 
Premises are a part. 

 
12. Costs, fees, and compensation paid to Lessor, or to Lessor’s subsidiaries or affiliates, for 

services rendered that exceed market based fees and compensation as might be charged 
by an unaffiliated third party of comparable skill, competence, stature, and reputation; 

 
13. Costs associated with: 
 

a. Operation of the business of the ownership of the Real Property or entity that 
constitutes Lessor or Lessor’s property manager, as distinguished from the cost of 



620\1253486.7  

building operations, including the costs of partnership or corporate accounting 
and legal matters; defending or prosecuting any Lessee, occupant, or prospective 
Lessee or occupant; selling or syndicating any of Lessor’s interest in the Real 
Property; and disputed between Lessor and Lessor’s property manager; 

 
b. Lessor’s general corporate or partnership overhead and general administrative 

expenses, including the salaries of management personnel; or 
 
c. Wages, salaries, and other compensation paid to any executive, employee of 

Lessor or Lesssor’s property manager or paid to any off-site personnel; 
 

14. Costs arising from the presence of any Hazardous Materials in or about the Premises or 
the Real Property, (including Hazardous Materials in the ground, water or soil) that was 
not placed in the Premises by Lessee; 

 
15. Costs incurred because the Building, or Common Area violate any valid, applicable 

building code, regulation, or law in effect and as interpreted by government authorities 
before the date on which the Lease is signed. This exclusion from Common Expenses 
shall include fines, penalties, interest, and the cost of repairs, replacements, alterations, or 
improvements necessary to make the Building, or Common Area, comply with applicable 
past laws in effect and as interpreted by government authorities before the date on which 
this Lease is signed, such as sprinkler installation or requirements under the ADA; 

 
16. Costs of: 
 

a. Initial construction of the Building or any additional buildings; 
 
b. Reconstruction of the Building or any additional buildings, except for insurance 

deductibles; 
 
c. Modification, alteration, repair, additions, improvements or replacements of any 

portion of the Building due to faulty construction (other than by Lessee) defects in 
the design, construction, materials or workmanship of the Building or Common 
Area; or 

 
d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessor shall be entitled to a management fee 

which will be part of the CAM charges for the center; provided, however, the total 
management fee for the center does not exceed the three percent (3%) 
management fee cap. 

 
17. Costs incurred in installing, operating, and maintaining any specialty service that is not 

necessary for Lessor’s provision, management, maintenance, and repair of required 
services for the operation of the Building or any associated parking facilities. The 
following are examples of theses specialty services: observatory; broadcasting facilities 
(other than the life-support and security system for the Building); luncheon club; or other 
dining facility; newsstand; flower service; shoeshine service; carwash; athletic or 
recreational club; and helicopter landing pad (other than the Building’s emergency and 



620\1253486.7  

life-safety helicopter facilities); provided that this exclusion shall not apply to such 
improvements as are required by any governmental agency; 

 
18. Charitable or political contributions or fees or dues payable to trade associations, industry 

associations, or similar associations; 
 
19. All items and services for which a contractor, manufacturer or supplier or Lessee or any 

other tenant in the Building is required to reimburse Lessor (other than through Lessee’s 
share or any other Lessee’s share of “Common Area Operating Expenses”; 

 
20. Costs for sculpture, paintings or other objects of art or the insuring, repair or maintenance 

thereof in excess of $200.00; 
 
21. Any costs, fees, dues, contributions or similar expenses for industry associations or 

similar organizations; 
 
22. Any compensation paid to clerks, attendants or other persons in commercial concessions 

operated by Lessor in the Building; 
 
23. The entertainment expenses and travel expenses of Lessor, its employees, agents, partners 

and affiliates; 
 
24. Costs to traffic studies, environmental impact reports, transportation systems 

management plans and reports, and traffic mitigation measures or due to any studies or 
reports; and 

 
25. Earthquake insurance deductibles. 



620\1253486.7  

EXHIBIT D 
 

FORM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE MEMORANDUM 

 

With respect to that certain lease ("Lease") dated ________________________, between 
Sonoma Valley Hospital District (“Lessor”) and Satellite Healthcare, Inc. (“Lessee”), 
whereby Lessor leased to Lessee and Lessee leased from Lessor space located at 
____________________________________ (the “Premises”). Lessee and Lessor hereby 
acknowledge as follows: 

(1) Lessor delivered possession of the Premises to Lessee on ___________________; 

(2) The Term of the Lease commenced on _______________________ (the 
"Commencement Date"); and 

(3) Lessee shall commence payment of Rent on _______________. 

(4) The Premises contain _________ rentable square feet of space. 

All capitalized terms herein, not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 
assigned in the Lease. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Commencement Date Memorandum is executed the date(s) set 
forth below. 

  
LESSOR:      LESSEE: 
 
 
SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL DISTRICT SATELLITE HEALTHCARE, INC. 
 
 
  
By: ___________________________  By: ___________________________ 
  
Name: _________________________  Name: _________________________ 
 
Title: __________________________  Title: __________________________ 
  
Date: __________________________  Date: __________________________ 
 
 



 
11. 

 
RESOLUTION No. 326 

UNION BANK LINE OF 
CREDIT EXTENSION 



Page 1 February 4, 2016 Res. No. 326 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 326 

RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA VALLEY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF THE EXTENSION OF THE LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT AND 

RELATED DOCUMENTATION FOR AN ADDITIONAL THREE YEARS WITH THE 
UNION BANK 

 
 
      WHEREAS, the District wishes to extend the existing Line of Credit terms and conditions 
remaining the same for the continued use for operational or expansion of the Sonoma Valley 
Hospital. 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Sonoma 
Valley Healthcare District as follows: 
 
      Section 1.

 

   The District shall enter into an arrangement with the Bank approved by the Board 
of Directors by which the Bank will extend the LOC with all conditions and terms remaining the 
same for an additional three years. 

      Section 2.

 

   The District’s Chief Executive Officer is authorized and directed to take such 
action and to execute on behalf of the District any transaction documents necessary or desirable 
to effectuate securing the extension of the Line of Credit from the Bank on existing terms and 
conditions. 

      Section 3.

 

   The Secretary of this District is hereby authorized to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver a certified copy of this Resolution and the Bank’s authorization to extend the existing 
Line of Credit for an additional three years beginning February 1, 2016. 

      

 

 

 



Page 2 February 4, 2016 Res. No. 326 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Sonoma Valley Health Care 
District, a political subdivision of the State of California, on this 4th

 

 day of February 2016, by the 
following vote: 

HIRSCH  
HOHORST 
RYMER 
NEVINS 
BOERUM 

 
   
Jane Hirsch, Chair 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE 
DISTRICT 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
   
Bill Boerum, Secretary 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE 
DISTRICT 
 

(SEAL) 

 



 
12. 

 
FY16 CAPITAL 

SPENDING 



Sonoma Valley Hospital

Capital Spending as December 31, 2015

Fiscal Year 2016

FY 2015 Carry Overs

Dept # Department DESCRIPTION

Remaining 

Approved Budget

Spent to 

Date

Remaining 

Balance

8450 Engineering Fire System 120,000                   13,738          106,262          
8450 Engineering Nurse Call System 100,000                   98,966          1,034               

                    220,000 112,704        107,296          
FY 2016 Budget Requests:

Dept # Department DESCRIPTION

 ESTIMATED 

AMOUNT  

 SPENT TO 

DATE 

 REMAINING 

BALANCE 

 Patient 

Care 

 Plant/ 

Building 

 Information 

Technology 

 Year 2    

(FY 2017) 

 Year 3 

(FY 2018) 

8450 Engineering Fire System 18,000                      18,000             18,000      
8450 Engineering Nurse Call System 150,000                   79,772          70,228             150,000    
7660 MRI 1.5 8 Channel Knee Coil 16,968                      16,968             16,968      
7660 MRI 1.5 8 CHANNEL NEUROVASCULAR ARRAY 25,200                      25,200             25,200      
7670 Ultrasound OB GYN Stretcher 6,473                        6,473               6,473        

8340 Dietary

Computrition Diet Office system.  This will enable us to implement 

Room Service for the acute patients, and to get  nutritional analysis of 

menu items 72,198                      72,198             72,198      
8340 Dietary Boilerless Convection Steamer 7,180                        7,180               7,180        
6171 OB 2 Wireless Fetal Monitors 50,000                      50,000             50,000      *
6171 OB 2 Infant Warmers 45,000                      45,000             45,000      *
6171 OB Carts 8,000                        8,000               8,000        *
7630 Radiology OR Table 10,000                      6,296             -                        10,000      
7420 Surgery Camera (eye microscope) 113,655                   44,350          7,687               113,655    
7420 Surgery Eye Tray 5,513                        5,513               5,513        
7420 Surgery Mini C-Arm 71,038                      71,038             71,038      
7420 Surgery Colonoscope 24,250                      24,250             24,250      
7420 Surgery Cautery Machine 6,027                        6,027               6,027        
8450 Engineering EAH #1- Nurses Station air handler, SNF - replacement 270,000                   270,000          270,000    
8450 Engineering EAH #2 - Patient room air handler, SNF - replacement 135,000                   135,000          135,000    
8450 Engineering SNF chilled water pipes 750,000                   750,000          325,000    425,000    
8450 Engineering Install Automatic doors by Cardio Pulmonary 25,000                      25,000             25,000      
8450 Engineering Automatic door at PT-Hwy 12 25,000                      25,000             25,000      
8450 Engineering SPC-4D Classification 50,000                      50,000             50,000      
8450 Engineering Sewer pumps replacement in the basement 100,000                   100,000          100,000    

8480 Information Systems

Desktop computers/laptops/datalux all-in-one: Estimated annual 

refresh for computers that are more than 5 years old 50,000                      50,000             50,000          

8480 Information Systems

Multiple printers (Zebra, Inkjet, Laser, Dymo) & Handheld Scanners: 

Estimated annul refresh of printers more than 5 years old 16,000                      16,000             16,000          
8480 Information Systems Kronos System Upgrade professional services from v5 to v7 15,570                      15,570             15,570      

8480 Information Systems

FormFast Phase II (expand use of signature pads) 14 desktop locations: 

Occ Health, Outpatient PT, Imaging, ER, Caridio & Admitting; includes 

additional server license and HL7 Interface 18,148                      18,148             18,148          
8480 Information Systems CareBook SVH Implementation (Grant) -                                 -                        
8480 Information Systems Hospital Wireless Network Replacement 7,000                        7,000               7,000             
8480 Information Systems VMWare license for 3 blade servers 9,000                        9,000               9,000             

8480 Information Systems Fiber pull from new wing 1st floor to MPOE to WW basement MPOE 10,000                      10,000             10,000          

8480 Information Systems

Cisco POE Switches (3560)

3 @ $4000 each 12,000                      12,000             12,000          
8510 Accounting AP paperless system 70,000                      70,000             70,000          

Various Contingency 100,000                   100,000          100,000        
Ultra Sound (Direct Connect) 14,681          
Replace Spring Pumps in Basement 9,100             

* Foundations Goal to raise money for these items. 2,292,218               154,199        2,096,478       334,986   218,000   292,148        991,808   455,277   

845,134                

2,512,218                        266,904              2,203,774             

Construction In Progress (CIP) CIP Committed

Spent Prior 

to Date

Remaining 

Balance

E H R Implementation 6,315,356                5,294,353     1,021,003       MedOne Leases

NPC2 12,800                      14,412          (1,612)              Operations

Lobby Upgrade 198,000                   33,945          164,056          Operations

Phase 2 Feasibility 40,000                      24,785          15,215             Operations

Nuclear Med Heat Pump 58,733                      10,615          48,118             Celtic lease

ER Communication 25,596                      10,853          14,742             Operations

Time Share 67,532                      8,750             58,782             Operations

Flouroscopy 802,981                   41,005          761,976          GE Loan

7,520,998               5,388,963    1,261,522      

Year 1 (Fiscal Year 2016)



 
13. 

 
FINANCIAL REPORT 
FOR MONTH ENDING 

DECMBER 31, 2015 



   
347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476-6811  707.935-5000  Fax 707.935.5433 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To:  SVH Finance Committee     
From:  Ken Jensen, CFO 
Date:  January 26, 2016 
Subject: Financial Report for the Month Ending December 31, 2015 

 
Financially, December was another positive month.  The loss from operations is ($82,001), better than 
budget by $462,749. In Fiscal Year 2015 we accrued amounts that were expected for AB 915, Outpatient 
Supplemental Reimbursement. In November, we filed a cost report with MediCal and Partnership Health 
Plan which claimed $597,133 more than what we had accrued due to increased volume, particularly in 
for Emergency Services.  In December we received notice that SVH received notice that it will receive 
the addition money in the next few months.  The additional reimbursement was recorded in December 
and it lowered the Contractual Discounts by the additional amount.   Without the additional AB915 
reimbursement, December’s loss from operations would have been ($679,134) or ($134,384) worse 
than budget. The year-to date actual loss from operations is ($1,528,758) which compares favorably to 
the expected year-to-date loss of ($2,255,435).  After accounting for all other activity, the December net 
income was a gain of $574,955 vs. the budgeted net income of $371,753. The December EBIDA was 
10.6% vs. a budgeted 0.3%. Year-to-date,  the total net income is $731,107 better than budget with a 
year to date EBIDA of 6.6% vs the budget of 6.6%. 
 
Gross patient revenue for December was $19,895,941, $1,661,778 better than expected. Inpatient gross 
revenue was under budget by ($73,735) due to patient days being under expectations by 64. Outpatient 
revenue was over budget by $799,310 due to an increase in outpatient surgeries, 18 over budget.  The 
Emergency Room gross revenue is over budget by $965,371 due to the continuing trend of increased 
volume over budgeted expectations.  SNF was over expectations by $36,852 due to a slight increase in 
volume.  Home Health was under budget by ($66,020) due to purposely reducing services provided to 
Marin patients. 
 
Deductions from revenue were unfavorable to budgeted expectations by ($1,702,564) due to higher 
than expected use of the Emergency Room by Medi-Cal and Medicare patients.  Overall, Medi-Cal 
accounts for 21.5% of gross revenue on budgeted expectations of 17.8% 
 
After accounting for all other operating revenue, the total operating revenue was $433,964 better than 
budget.   
 

Operating Expenses of $4,828,540 were better than budget by $28,785. The significant negative 
variances were: Employee Benefits ($47,727), supplies (61,895) and interest expense (33,270). 



   
347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476-6811  707.935-5000  Fax 707.935.5433 

Employee benefits were over budgeted expectations due to higher use of PTO during the holidays, but 
were offset by a lower cost in salaries and wages.  Supplies were over budget due to higher volume in 
the Emergency Department, Surgery, Laboratory, and Pharmacy.  Interest expense is over budgeted 
expectations due to the quarterly true up of the Celtic lease. 

After accounting for all income and expenses, but not including Restricted Contributions and GO bond 
activity, the net gain for December was $138,006 vs. a budgeted net loss of ($312,788).  The total net 
income for December after all activity was $574,955 vs. a budgeted net income of $371,753. 
 
EBIDA for the month of December was 10.6% vs. the budgeted 0.3%. 

Patient Volumes – December 
  ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PRIOR YEAR 
Acute Discharges 109 116 -7 111 
Newborn Discharges 

24 16 8 18 
Acute Patient Days 

351 415 -64 406 
SNF Patient Days 648 596 52 596 
Home Care Visits 915 1,204 -289 1,103 
OP Gross Revenue 

$12,274 $10,512 $1,762 $10,084 
Surgical Cases 136 117 19 117 

 
Overall Payer Mix – December 

  ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE YTD ACTUAL YTD BUDGET VARIANCE 

Medicare 44.2% 49.7% -5.5% 46.6% 48.9% -2.3% 
Medicare Mgd 
Care 9.0% 4.9% 4.1% 6.9% 4.8% 2.1% 
Medi-Cal 21.5% 17.8% 3.7% 19.6% 17.6% 2.0% 
Self Pay 0.4% 1.8% -1.4% 1.1% 1.8% -0.7% 
Commercial 19.9% 19.8% 0.1% 20.3% 20.6% -0.3% 
Workers Comp 3.0% 3.2% -0.2% 2.9% 3.3% -0.4% 
Capitated 2.0% 2.8% -0.8% 2.7% 3.0% -0.3% 
Total 100.0% 100.0%   100.0% 100.0%   

 
Cash Activity for December: 
For the month of December the cash collection goal was $3,422,216 and the Hospital collected 
$3,740,509, or over the goal by $318,293. The year-to-date cash goal is $20,784,018 and the Hospital 
has collected $20,912,928 or over the goal by $128,910.   The cash collection goal is based upon net 
hospital revenue from 90 days ago.   Days of cash on hand are 21 days at December 31, 2015.  The 
increase in cash is due to the December receipt of the parcel tax. Accounts Receivable decreased from 
November, from 53.2 days to 51.2 days in December.  Accounts Payable is up by $235,698 from 
November and Accounts Payable days are at 53.7.  



   
347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476-6811  707.935-5000  Fax 707.935.5433 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
-Attachment A is the Payer Mix Analysis which includes the projected collection percentage by payer. 
-Attachment B is the Operating Indicators Report 
-Attachment C is the Balance Sheet 
-Attachment D (two pages) is the Statement of Revenue and Expense.  The first page breaks out the 
hospital operations and page two includes all other activity.  
-Attachment E is the Variance Analysis.  The line number tie to the Statement of Revenue and Expense 
line numbers and explains any significant variances.  
-Attachment F are the graphs for Revenue and Accounts Payable.  
-Attachment G is the Statistical Analysis 
-Attachment H is the Cash Forecast 



Sonoma Valley Hospital ATTACHMENT A

Net Revenue by Payer for the month of December 31, 2015

December-15 1 YTD

Gross Revenue: Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance
Medicare 8,772,327 9,016,234 -243,907 -2.7% 55,659,141               55,056,369               602,772            0.5%
Medi-Cal 4,265,444 3,230,326 1,035,118 32.0% 23,486,903               19,804,884               3,682,019        3.3%
Self Pay 82,197 318,538 -236,341 -74.2% 1,327,614                 2,010,074                 (682,460)          -0.6%
Commercial 3,986,709 3,688,899 297,810 8.1% 24,485,007               23,752,181               732,826            0.6%
Medicare Managed Care 1,781,576 874,558 907,018 103.7% 8,196,488                 5,454,137                 2,742,351        2.4%
Worker's Comp. 600,617 589,399 11,218 1.9% 3,460,583                 3,757,523                 (296,940)          -0.3%
Capitated 407,070 516,209 -109,139 -21.1% 3,168,804                 3,400,731                 (231,927)          -0.2%
Total 19,895,941             18,234,163             1,661,778        119,784,541            113,235,899            6,548,642        

Net Revenue: Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance
Medicare 1,409,843                1,627,761                (217,918)           -13.4% 10,008,420               10,493,649               (485,229)          -4.6%
Medi-Cal 605,456                   633,690                   (28,234)             -4.5% 3,406,603                 3,140,081                 266,522            8.5%
Self Pay 24,659                      111,488                   (86,829)             -77.9% 406,308                    691,285                    (284,977)          -41.2%
Commercial 1,564,949                1,329,691                235,259            17.7% 8,873,271                 8,636,900                 236,372            2.7%
Medicare Managed Care 231,427                   139,180                   92,247              66.3% 1,177,388                 869,224                    308,165            35.5%
Worker's Comp. 133,637                   138,869                   (5,231)               -3.8% 775,457                    909,558                    (134,101)          -14.7%
Capitated 14,003                      21,004                      (7,001)               -33.3% 113,302                    121,188                    (7,886)               -6.5%
Prior Period Adj/IGT 597,133                   125,250                   471,883            376.8% 1,566,827                 751,500                    815,327            108.5%
Total 4,581,108                4,126,933                454,175            11.0% 26,327,577              25,613,384              714,193            2.8%

Percent of Net Revenue: Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance
Medicare 30.8% 39.4% -8.6% -21.8% 38.0% 41.0% -3.1% -7.6%
Medi-Cal 13.2% 15.4% -2.2% -14.3% 12.9% 12.3% 0.6% 4.9%
Self Pay 0.5% 2.7% -2.2% -81.5% 1.5% 2.7% -1.2% -44.4%
Commercial 34.2% 32.2% 2.0% 6.2% 33.7% 33.7% 0.0% 0.0%
Medicare Managed Care 5.1% 3.4% 1.7% 50.0% 4.5% 3.4% 1.1% 32.4%
Worker's Comp. 2.9% 3.4% -0.5% -14.7% 2.9% 3.6% -0.7% -19.4%
Capitated 0.3% 0.5% -0.2% -40.0% 0.4% 0.5% -0.1% -20.0%
Prior Period Adj/IGT 13.0% 3.0% 10.0% 333.3% 6.1% 2.8% 3.4% 121.4%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Projected Collection Percentage: Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance
Medicare 16.1% 18.1% -2.0% -11.0% 18.0% 19.1% -1.1% -5.7%
Medi-Cal 14.2% 19.6% -5.4% -27.6% 14.5% 15.9% -1.4% -8.5%
Self Pay 30.0% 35.0% -5.0% -14.3% 30.6% 34.4% -3.8% -11.0%
Commercial 39.3% 36.0% 3.2% 8.9% 36.2% 36.4% -0.1% -0.3%
Medicare Managed Care 13.0% 15.9% -2.9% -18.4% 14.4% 15.9% -1.6% -9.9%
Worker's Comp. 22.3% 23.6% -1.3% -5.6% 22.4% 24.2% -1.8% -7.4%
Capitated 3.4% 4.1% -0.6% -15.5% 3.6% 3.6% 0.0% 0.3%
Prior Period Adj/IGT 3.0% 0.7% 2.3% 336.9% 1.3% 0.7% 0.6% 97.1%



ATTACHMENT C

                                                                                   Pre-Audit
Current Month Prior Month Prior Year

Assets
Current Assets:

1   Cash 3,108,433$         1,397,891$         1,823,144$         
2   Trustee Funds 2,970,872           1,302,603           2,533,185           
3   Net Patient Receivables 7,864,567           8,306,816           7,398,657           
4   Allow Uncollect Accts (654,860)             (726,710)             (668,956)             
5       Net A/R 7,209,707           7,580,106           6,729,701           
6   Other Accts/Notes Rec 4,932,326           7,749,709           3,999,477           
7   3rd Party Receivables, Net 1,122,720           422,221              1,190,072           
8   Inventory 904,149              894,596              803,069              
9   Prepaid Expenses 752,812              727,902              933,858              

10         Total Current Assets 21,001,019$       20,075,028$       18,012,506$       

12 Property,Plant & Equip, Net 53,415,047$       53,705,856$       55,654,793$       
13 Specific Funds 275,657              279,134              370,214              
14 Other Assets 143,691              143,691              143,007              
15       Total Assets 74,835,415$       74,203,709$       74,180,519$       

Liabilities & Fund Balances
Current Liabilities:

16   Accounts Payable 3,732,055$         3,496,357$         4,047,093$         
17   Accrued Compensation 4,229,706           4,061,646           3,617,860           
18   Interest Payable 571,281              457,025              589,645              
19   Accrued Expenses 1,628,644           1,254,088           1,210,693           
20   Advances From 3rd Parties 1,261,918           1,397,743           31,592                
21   Deferred Tax Revenue 2,956,665           3,449,442           3,436,032           
22   Current Maturities-LTD 1,706,832           1,703,099           1,706,832           
23   Line of Credit - Union Bank 5,923,734           5,923,734           5,698,734           
24   Other Liabilities 165,819              192,855              144,392              
25     Total Current Liabilities 22,176,654$       21,935,989$       20,482,873$       

26 Long Term Debt, net current portion 36,905,660$       37,089,574$       39,740,968$        

27 Fund Balances:
28   Unrestricted 12,768,215$       12,501,688$       12,554,469$        
29   Restricted 2,984,886           2,676,458           1,402,209           
30     Total Fund Balances 15,753,101$       15,178,146$       13,956,678$       
31 Total Liabilities & Fund Balances 74,835,415$       74,203,709$       74,180,519$       

Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2015

                                             Sonoma Valley Health Care District



Page 1 of 2

1

Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT D
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Comparative Results
For the Period Ended December 31, 2015

YTD

Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Prior Year
Volume Information

1 109                    116                    (7)                       -6% Acute Discharges 567                    601                    (34)                     -6% 610                    
2 648                    596                    52                      9% SNF Days 3,718                 3,638                 80                      2% 3,638                 
3 915                    1,204                 (289)                   -24% Home Care Visits 5,797                 7,513                 (1,716)               -23% 6,878                 
4 12,274              10,512              1,762                 17% Gross O/P Revenue (000's) 75,502$            69,339$            6,163                 9% 65,562$            

Financial Results
Gross Patient Revenue

5 5,327,142$       5,400,877$       (73,735)             -1% Inpatient 31,268,630$    30,259,656$    1,008,974         3% 30,519,645$    
6 7,104,819         6,305,509         799,310            13% Outpatient 43,340,998       42,740,214       600,784            1% 38,856,567       
7 4,896,597         3,931,226         965,371            25% Emergency 30,540,603       24,861,597       5,679,006         23% 24,588,941       
8 2,264,831         2,227,979         36,852              2% SNF 12,736,190       13,076,298       (340,108)           -3% 12,485,554       
9 302,552            368,572            (66,020)             -18% Home Care 1,898,120         2,298,134         (400,014)           -17% 2,116,475         
10 19,895,941$    18,234,163$    1,661,778         9% Total Gross Patient Revenue 119,784,541$  113,235,899$  6,548,642         6% 108,567,183$  

Deductions from Revenue
11 (15,824,466)$   (14,121,902)$   (1,702,564)        -12% Contractual Discounts (94,485,625)$   (87,710,547)$   (6,775,078)        -8% (84,215,081)$   
12 (60,000) (89,314)             29,314              33% Bad Debt (350,000) (535,884) 185,884            35% (740,000)
13 (27,500) (21,264)             (6,236)               -29% Charity Care Provision (188,166) (127,584) (60,582)             -47% (111,700)
14 597,133            125,250            471,883            0% Prior Period Adj/Government Program Revenue 1,566,827         751,500            815,327            0% 30,581              
15 (15,314,833)$   (14,107,230)$   (1,207,603)       9% Total Deductions from Revenue (93,456,964)$   (87,622,515)$   (5,834,449)       7% (85,036,200)$   

16 4,581,108$       4,126,933$       454,175            11% Net Patient Service Revenue 26,327,577$    25,613,384$    714,193            3% 23,530,983$    

17 148,240$          171,184$          (22,944)             -13% Risk contract revenue 920,200$          1,027,104$       (106,904)           -10% 1,547,492$       
18 4,729,348$       4,298,117$       431,231            10% Net Hospital Revenue 27,247,777$    26,640,488$    607,289            2% 25,078,475$    

19 17,191$            14,458$            2,733                 -19% Other Op Rev & Electronic Health Records 160,559$          86,748$            73,811              85% 482,842$          
20 4,746,539$       4,312,575$       433,964            10% Total Operating Revenue 27,408,336$    26,727,236$    681,100 3% 25,561,317$    

Operating Expenses
21 2,128,408$       2,184,359$       55,951              3% Salary and Wages and Agency Fees 12,992,249$    12,964,241$    (28,008)             0% 12,047,955$    
22 873,469 825,742$          (47,727)             -6% Employee Benefits 4,992,684 4,826,080 (166,604)           -3% 4,560,932
23 3,001,877$       3,010,101$       8,224                 0% Total People Cost 17,984,933$    17,790,321$    (194,612)           -1% 16,608,887$    
24 376,599$          376,605$          6                        0% Med and Prof Fees (excld Agency) 2,035,742$       2,133,549$       97,807              5% 2,132,678$       
25 515,552 453,657 (61,895)             -14% Supplies 3,056,525 2,951,713 (104,812)           -4% 2,953,931
26 292,675 352,170 59,495              17% Purchased Services 1,678,086 2,113,020 434,934            21% 2,029,941
27 290,245 283,132 (7,113)               -3% Depreciation 1,746,659 1,698,789 (47,870)             -3% 1,744,920
28 94,350 98,958 4,608                 5% Utilities 600,509 593,748 (6,761)               -1% 603,508
29 25,266 20,834 (4,432)               -21% Insurance 151,474 125,004 (26,470)             -21% 115,530
30 76,687 43,417 (33,270)             -77% Interest 291,934 246,353 (45,581)             -19% 277,497
31 155,289 155,951 662                    0% Other 1,023,206 955,173 (68,033)             -7% 162,146
32 0 62,500              62,500              100% Matching Fees (Government Programs) 368,026 375,000            6,974                 2% 645,940
33 4,828,540$       4,857,325$       28,785              1% Operating expenses 28,937,094$    28,982,671$    45,577              0% 27,274,979$    

34 (82,001)$           (544,750)$         462,749 85% Operating Margin (1,528,758)$     (2,255,435)$     726,677            32% (1,713,662)$     

Variance
Month

This Year Variance This Year
Year-To- Date



Page 2 of 2

2

Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT D
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Comparative Results
For the Period Ended December 31, 2015

YTD

Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Prior Year
Variance

Month
This Year Variance This Year

Year-To- Date

Non Operating Rev and Expense
35 7,507$              13,657$            (6,150)               -45% Miscellaneous Revenue 20,836$            81,942$            (61,106)             -75% 79,932$            
36 -                     5,805                 (5,805)               -100% Donations -                     34,830              (34,830)             100% 46,629
37 (37,500) (37,500) -                     0% Physician Practice Support-Prima (225,000) (225,000) -                     0% (225,000)
38 250,000 250,000 -                     0% Parcel Tax Assessment Rev 1,501,954 1,500,000 1,954                 0% 1,500,000
39 220,007$          231,962$          (11,955)             -5% Total Non-Operating Rev/Exp 1,297,790$       1,391,772$       (93,982)             -7% 1,401,562$       

40 138,006$          (312,788)$         450,794            -144% Net Income / (Loss)  prior to Restricted Contributions (230,968)$         (863,663)$         632,695            -73% (312,100)$         

41 308,428$          35,183$            273,245            777% Capital Campaign Contribution 484,511$          211,098$          273,413            130% 395,088$          
42 -$                       520,837$          (520,837)           0% Restricted Foundation Contributions 450,000$          625,002$          (175,002)           100% -$                       
43 446,434$          243,232$          203,202            84% Net Income / (Loss) w/ Restricted Contributions 703,543$          (27,563)$           731,106            -2653% 82,988$            

44 242,777 242,777 -                     0% GO Bond Tax Assessment Rev 1,456,662 1,456,662 -                     0% 915,644
45 (114,256) (114,256) -                     0% GO Bond Interest (689,209) (689,210) 1                        0% (771,159)

46 574,955$          371,753$          203,202            55% Net Income/(Loss) w GO Bond Activity 1,470,996$       739,889$          731,107            99% 227,473$          

504,938$          13,761$            EBIDA - Not including Restricted Contributions 1,807,625$       1,081,480$       1,710,317$       
10.6% 0.3% 6.6% 4.0% 6.7%



Page 1 of 1

1

Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT E
Statement of Revenue and Expenses Variance Analysis
For the Period Ended December 31, 2015

YTD MONTH
Description Variance Variance
Volume Information

1 Acute Discharges (34)                  (7)                        
2 SNF Days 80                    52                       
3 Home Care Visits (1,716)             (289)                    
4 Gross O/P Revenue (000's) 6,163              1,762                  

Financial Results
Gross Patient Revenue

5 Inpatient 1,008,974      (73,735)              Acute patient days were under budget by 64.   
6 Outpatient 600,784          799,310             Outpatient visits were over budget by 25 visits and outpatient surgeries were over budget by 18 cases.
7 Emergency 5,679,006      965,371             ER visits were over budget by  117 visits.
8 SNF (340,108)        36,852                SNF patient days were over budget by 52 days.
9 Home Care (400,014)        (66,020)              Home Care visits were under budget by 289 visits. 

10 Total Gross Patient Revenue 6,548,642      1,661,778          

Deductions from Revenue
11 Contractual Discounts (6,775,078)     (1,702,564)         The ER payer mix consisted of primarily Medicare and Medi-Cal with reimbursement rates of 8.25% and 3.25% respectively.
12 Bad Debt 185,884          29,314                
13 Charity Care Provision (60,582)           (6,236)                

14 Prior Period Adj/Government Program Revenue 815,327          471,883             The hospital received notification of it's AB 915 Partnership and Medi-Cal OP supplemental payment for FY 2015 and it is $597,133 over what was accrued.

15 Total Deductions from Revenue (5,834,449)     (1,207,603)         

16 Net Patient Service Revenue 714,193          454,175             

17 Risk contract revenue (106,904)        (22,944)              Blue Shield capitation received was under budget.
18 Net Hospital Revenue 607,289          431,231             

19 Other Op Rev & Electronic Health Records 73,811            2,733                  
20 Total Operating Revenue 681,100          433,964             

Operating Expenses
21 Salary and Wages and Agency Fees (28,008)           55,951                Gross wages and salaries were under budget but is offset by higher PTO use.
22 Employee Benefits (166,604)        (47,727)              There was a higher use of PTO in December due to the holidays.

23 Total People Cost (194,612)        8,224                  
24 Med and Prof Fees (excld Agency) 97,807            6                         
25 Supplies (104,812)        (61,895)              Supplies are over budget due to higher volume in ER, surgery, lab, and pharmacy.
26 Purchased Services 434,934          59,495                Budgeted Services not used during December.
27 Depreciation (47,870)           (7,113)                
28 Utilities (6,761)             4,608                  
29 Insurance (26,470)           (4,432)                Insurance premiums increased over budgeted expectations.
30 Interest (45,581)           (33,270)              
31 Other (68,033)           662                     
32 Matching Fees (Government Programs) 6,974              62,500                There were no matching fees in December.  This expense is offset from the revenue above from line 14.
33 Operating expenses 45,577            28,785                

34 Operating Margin 726,677          462,749             

Non Operating Rev and Expense
35 Miscellaneous Revenue (61,106)           (6,150)                
36 Donations (34,830)           (5,805)                There were no unrestricted donations in December.
37 Physician Practice Support-Prima -                  -                      
38 Parcel Tax Assessment Rev 1,954              -                      
39 Total Non-Operating Rev/Exp (93,982)           (11,955)              

-                      
40 Net Income / (Loss)  prior to Restricted Contributions 632,695          450,794             

-                      
41 Capital Campaign Contribution 273,413          273,245             Capital campaign donations received from the Foundation were over budgeted expectations.
42 Restricted Foundation Contributions (175,002)        (520,837)            The mammography funds of $450,000 accrued in November were budgeted in December.
43 Net Income / (Loss) w/ Restricted Contributions 731,106          203,202             

44 GO Bond Tax Assessment Rev -                  -                      
45 GO Bond Interest 1                      -                      

46 Net Income/(Loss) w GO Bond Activity 731,107          203,202             



 
14. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

REPORT FOR 
JANUARY 2015 



1 

To: Sonoma Valley Health Care District Board of Directors 
From:  Kelly Mather 
Date:  1/27/16 
Subject: Administrative Report 

 

Summary 
We had a very good month in December and I am pleased to say that we are projected to meet our budget 
goals this year.  Leadership has done an outstanding job in managing the expenses, even with a significant 
increase in physician expenses this year.   

 Dashboard and Trended Results  

The inpatient and emergency satisfaction goals were met in October.  We have reviewed our return rate and 
while the number is low, we have a good return rate.  We should have a new VBP score in the next few 
weeks.   The staff satisfaction survey is complete and we met the goal of having 80% participation.  The 
EBIDA is looking very good as compared to our budgeted goal of 4%.  The Parcel Tax money ($1.6 million) 
was received and helped improve our Days cash on hand.  The number of surgeries for the year is now 
ahead of the prior year. We also met our goal for community hours in just 6 months of the year.     
 
Strategic Update 

Strategic Priorities Initiatives Status 
Offer the highest levels 
of safety and quality 
healthcare 

Staff satisfaction 
Inpatient satisfaction 
Emergency satisfaction 
Physician satisfaction 
Benchmark rankings  
Culture of safety 

Survey results will be out in March 
Inconsistently meeting goal above 70th

Meeting goal above 50
 percentile 

th

Great participation.  Action plan was implemented 
 percentile 

Meeting VBP goal 
Starting to discuss a “harm score” 

Improve hospital 
financial stability 

Physician outreach 
Improve margins 
Pricing & Health plans  
Ortho & Gen surgery 
Timeshare office 
Outpatient services center 
Parcel tax renewal 
South lot purchase 

Many new physicians and referrals are up 
Margins are up in SNF & OB, working on Inpatient 
Prices were increased, some health plan increases 
Orthopedics is up, General Surgery is down 
1 timeshare is going well, opening another  
Too expensive, will look at major fundraiser 
Polling starts next month 
Will likely purchase by August 

Respond well to the 
regulation and 
payment model 
changes 

Medicare margins 
Partnership & Medi-Cal 
Large hospital systems 
Physician integration 
Study capitation 
ICD 10 
Meaningful use E H R 

Starting Medicare dashboard 
Improved some reimbursements, supplemental $ 
Nothing from Kaiser, UCSF not interested 
Working with Prima, considering 1206(b) clinic 
Still not sure if we should do this with Medi-Cal 
Complete 
Complete 

Lead efforts to be a 
healthy community 

Population Health 
SVHF expand donors 
Employer Wellness 
Community Care Network 
Disease reversal program 
Wellness U 
Advanced healthcare plan 
Community opinion survey 
SVHF raises >$750k 

Girltalk, Active Aging, IHN working well 
Good progress, starting grateful patient program 
Will begin offering to Occupational Health clients 
Coaching started, teaching to begin in Spring 
Decided to do Cancer Support Sonoma instead 
Successfully have over 130 graduates 
Good progress, planning more this spring 
Complete 
Raised over $1 million in 2015 



2 

 
 
 
 
 

DECEMBER DASHBOARD 

PILLAR 
PERFORMANCE 

GOAL 
METRIC ACTUAL RESULT GOAL LEVEL 

Service 
Excellence 

 

Highly satisfied 
Inpatients  

Maintain at least 5 
out of 9 HCAHPS 
domain results 
above the 70th 

percentile  

6 out of 9 in 
October 

 

>7 = 5 (stretch) 
6 = 4  
5 = 3 (Goal) 
4 = 2  
<4=1  

Service 
Excellence 

Highly satisfied 
Emergency 

Patients 

Maintain at least 5 
out of 7 ERCAPS 

domain results 
above the 70th 

percentile  

5 out of 7 in 
October 

7 = 5 (stretch) 
6 = 4 
5 = 3 (Goal) 
4 = 2 
3 = 1 

Quality 
 

Excellent Clinical 
Outcomes  

Value Based 
Purchasing 

Clinical Score at 
50 or higher 

52.5 
(80TH

>55 = 5 (stretch) 
 percentile) >52 =4  

>50 =3 (Goal) 
>47=2  
<40 =1  

People 
 

Highly Engaged 
and Satisfied 

Staff 

Press Ganey 
percentile ranking 
of 75th percentile 

or higher  

 79.6% mean 
score at 91st 

percentile   

>80th

>77th=4  
 = 5 (stretch)  

>75th=3 (Goal)  
>72nd=2  
<70th =1  

Finance 
 

Financial Viability  YTD EBIDA 
 

6.6% 
 

>5% (stretch)  
>4.5%=4  
>4.0% (Goal)  
>3/5%=2  
<3.5%=1  

Efficiency and 
Financial 

Management  

  Meet FY 2016 
Budgeted 
Expenses  

$28,937,094 
(actual)  

$28,982,671 
(budget)  

<2%  =5 (stretch)  
<1% = 4  
<Budget=3 (Goal)  
>1% =2  
>2% = 1  

Growth  
 

Surgical Cases  Increase surgeries 
by 2% over prior 

year 

 778 YTD FY2016 
 736 YTD FY2015 

>2% = 5 
>1% = 3 
< 1% = 2  

Outpatient & 
Emergency 
Volumes  

2% increase 
(gross outpatient 
revenue over prior 

year)  

$75.8 mm YTD 
 $65.6 mm prior 

year 

>5% = 5 (stretch) 
>3% = 4 
>2% = 3 (Goal) 
<2% = 2 

Community  
 

Community 
Benefit Hours 

Hours of time 
spent on 

community benefit 
activities per year 

1031 hours for 6 
months 

>1500 = 5 
>1200 = 4 
>1000 = 3 
>750 = 2 
>500 = 1 

 



3 

 
 
 
 
 

 

MEASUREMENT 
Goal 

FY 2016 
Jul 

2015 
Aug 

2015 
Sep 

2015 
Oct 

2015 
Nov 
2015 

Dec 
2015 

Jan 
2015 

Feb 
2015 

Mar 
2015 

Apr 
2015 

May 
2015 

Jun 
2015 

Inpatient Satisfaction 6/9 5 5 2 6         
Emergency Satisfaction 5/7 2 3 4 5         
Value Based Purchasing  >50 52 52.2 53.5 52.5      47 48 48 

Staff Satisfaction >75th 91 91 91 91 91 91 76 91 91 91 91 91 
FY YTD Turnover <10% 1.2 1.2 1.8 2.8 3.4 4.6 5.5 6.5 7.4 7.6 8   8.3 

YTD EBIDA >4% 8.2 7.6 7.7 7.3 5.7 6.6 6.9 6.2 5.4 4.7 4.2 3.8 
Net Operating Revenue >4.5m 4.48 4.6 4.7 4.7 4.1 4.7 4.4 4.6 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.5 
Expense Management <4.8m 4.7 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.6 4.8 4.6 5.0 4.7 4.8 4.6 5.1 

Net Income >50k 202 174 27.8 104 244   575 29 -211 -382 -278 74 139 
Days Cash on Hand >20 22 16 18 13 9 21 17 12 15 20 17 16 

A/R Days <50 46 45 49 47 53 51 53 48 47 47 43 47 
Total FTE’s <315 313 310 312 327 322 317 299 303 310 304 307 309 
FTEs/AOB <4.0 3.6 3.77 3.65 3.77 4.1 3.77 4.12 3.46 3.79 4.05 3.91 3.36 

Inpatient Discharges >100 110 74 92 97 85 109 104 98 113 95 97 97 
Outpatient Revenue >$12m 12.6 12.9 12.7 13.1 11.9 12.2 11.8 10.5 11.8 11.2 10.7 12.0 

Surgeries >130 125 122 127 131 114 136 129 136 137 144 118 122 
Home Health >1000 981 917 948 948 1088 915 1097 1109 1232 1154 963 1014 

Births >15 16 15 11 11 14 24 11 11 16 7 11 24 
SNF days >660 619 634   607 666 544 648 654 607 669 487 626 669 

MRI >120 143 131 119 132 109 113 108 116 157 138 125 144 
Cardiology (Echos) >65 66 62 63 77 41 50 62 56 67 61 63 66 

Laboratory >12.5 12.1 12.2 11.5 11.7 11.6 11.4 12.5 11.5 12.1 12.3 11.9 12.3 
Radiology >850 1036 1011 997 1018 875 907 1111 1053 1156 1030 1014 965 

Rehab >2587 3014 2384 2773 2886 2297 3003 2478 2751 3113 3063 3008 2873 
CT >300 384 352 343 336 381 323 392 309 347 302 357 335 
ER >800 878 888 871 820 841 863 988 845 769 876 943 846 

Mammography >475 462 439 367 543 406 492 487 444 466 497 476 453 
Ultrasound >325 395 314 320 353 246 290 309 317 357 391 354 345 

Occupational Health >650 733 728 646   871 681 683 653 588 679 687 573 660 

FY 2016 TRENDED RESULTS 



 
15. 

 
OFFICER & 

COMMITTEE 
REPORTS 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  February 4, 2016 

Prepared by:  Peter Hohorst 

Agenda Item Title:  Policy on Governing Bidding for Facilities Contracts 

Recommendations: 

That the policy governing bidding for facilities contracts be approved subject to review by legal counsel. 

Background: 

The Board does not have an existing policy that specifies how contracting for facilities projects is to be 
handled. The Board has previously approved a policy governing contracts for purchasing material and 
services that are not part of a facilities project. . During the past four years almost all facilities work was 
performed under the design-build agreement with Otto Construction, and a policy governing contracting 
for facilities work was not a pressing need.  

Under the Health and Safety Code the procedures and requirements are different for the two categories. 
This policy outlines the procedures and criteria that must be followed to be in compliance with the Health 
and Safety Code and the Public Contracting Code. It also clarifies the authority delegated to the CEO and 
the authority retained by the Board. 

Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 

Without a set policy the complies with the Health and Safety Code and the Public Contracting Code the 
District is at risk of failing to comply with the law because of ignorance of the law. 

Financial Impact: 

None if the policy is adopted 

Attachment: 

Policy on Governing Bidding for Facilities Contracts 

 



Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:   SVHCD Board of Directors  
Prepared by:  Peter Hohorst  
Date:   February 4, 2016  

Agenda Item Title:  Policy Governing Bidding for Facility Contracts 

PURPOSE: 
It is the intent of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Sonoma Valley Health Care District 
(“District”) to provide an equal opportunity to all qualified and responsible parties wishing to 
participate in the bidding process with respect to the Sonoma Valley Health Care District 
(“District”) and the Sonoma Valley Hospital (“Hospital

It is the intent of the Board, consistent with the District’s obligations, to obtain the maximum 
value for all expenditures. 

”).   

It is the intent of the Board to clarify, with this policy, the authority granted to the President and 
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) by the Board with regard to District and Hospital purchases 
and contracts. It is also the intent to clarify the authority retained by the Board.  

In all instances where authority is granted to the CEO, it is understood that the CEO may in turn 
delegate this authority to a member of the CEO’s staff. Responsibility for adherence to this 
policy, when the authority is delegated by the CEO to a staff member, remains with the CEO. 

For purposes of this Policy “Facility Project” is defined as work relating to projects involving 
construction or improvement of a hospital or health facility (i.e. public works projects), but 
excluding routine or recurring maintenance.   

STATEMENT OF BOARD POLICY: 
Section 1 

1.1 
Scope and Application of the Policy 

Except as specified in Section 5 of this policy, the Board hereby delegates to the CEO the 
authority to act on behalf of the Board in the implementation of the provisions of this Policy. 

Delegation of Authority 

1.2 
The District, with certain exceptions, as covered in Section 2, (H&S Code 32132) shall award 
any contract exceeding twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) for projects relating to the 
construction or improvement of the Hospital or a facility owned by or leased to the District 
(Facility Projects) to the lowest responsible bidder using the “formal” bidding procedures 
provided in Section 3 [Formal Bidding Procedure].  Alternately, the District shall reject all bids.  

Bidding Threshold 

1.3 Authority to Make Purchases.   



Page 2 
 

The District’s CEO is hereby given authority to make all purchases and to execute all purchase 
orders or contracts for the District duly authorized pursuant to this Policy.  All purchases and 
contracts shall be upon written order. 

1.4 Contract File  
The CEO shall keep and maintain written or electronic records of all contracts. The contract file 
shall include a description of the method used to select the contractor or service provider, 
including a copy of the request for proposal (RFP) or other form of solicitation, the amount of 
the contract, the expiration date of the contract, and the name of the contractor or service 
provider. The file shall also include a copy of the Notice of Bids and the names of all bidders and 
their proposals. 

The contract file for all contracts awarded under the exceptions listed in section 2 shall include a 
description of the exception and an explanation of the method used to select the contractor or 
service provider. 

The contract file shall include the names of any employ of the District, or any Board member 
who elected to recuse themselves from the award process because of a conflict of interest.  

1.5 Conflict of Interest 
With respect to all contracts covered by this Policy, any practices or procedures which might 
result in unlawful activity shall be prohibited, including practices which might result in rebates, 
kickbacks or other unlawful consideration.  No employee of the District may participate in any 
selection process when such employee has a relationship with a person or business entity seeking 
a contract which would subject those employees to the prohibitions in Government Code § 87100 

1.6 No Advantage.   

No illegal, unfair, unethical or otherwise improper advantage shall be accorded to any bidder by 
the District, a Board member or an employee of the District/Hospital. 

Section 2.  Exceptions to Bidding and Lowest Bid Policy 
The District shall not be required to apply the lowest bid policy to (a) emergency contracts, (b) 
emergency service contracts, (c) change orders to existing contracts that are less than 5% of the 
original contract, (d) routine and recurring maintenance, (e) professional services of private 
architectural, landscape architectural, engineering, environmental, land surveying, or 
construction project management firms for work on Facility Projects, and (f) Facility Projects 
where the District has elected to use a design-build method to select the contractor H&S Code 
32132.b) 

Section 2.1 Emergency Contracts. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Board may award contracts without following the 
lowest bid policy, if it first determines (i) an emergency exists that warrants such expenditure 
due to fire, flood, storm, epidemic or other disaster or equipment failure and (ii) it is necessary to 
protect public health, safety, welfare or property. (H&S Code 32136). In the event that the 
emergency requires immediate action, the CEO may make the determination that an emergency 
condition exists and award a contract without first receiving Board approval. The CEO shall 
inform the Board of the contract and the emergency at the next regularly scheduled Board 
meeting. 



Page 3 
 

Section 2.2 Change Orders 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the CEO shall not be required to secure bids for 
change orders that do not materially change the scope of work set forth in a contract previously 
made, provided (i) the contract was made in compliance with bidding requirements, and (ii) no 
individual change order amounts to more than five percent (5%) of the contract (H&S Code 
32132.c). 

Section 2.3 Professional Services 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, where required by facility projects, the CEO shall 
award contracts for professional services of private architectural, landscape architectural, 
engineering, environmental, land surveying or construction management firms on the basis of 
demonstrated competence and on the professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory 
performance of the services required.  (Government Code § 4526.)  No competitive bidding shall 
be required.  (Health and Safety Code § 32132(b).)   

If the CEO elects to solicit bids for architectural, landscape architectural, engineering, 
environmental, land surveying or construction management firms, the Notice Inviting Bids for 
these services shall contain the following statement in boldface type: “Please be advised that the 
successful design professional will be required to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
District against liability for claims that arise out of or relate to the negligence, recklessness or 
willful misconduct of the design professional.” (Public Contract Code § 20103.6 and Civil Code 
§ 2782.8.)   
The CEO shall establish procedures for verifying competence and professional qualifications and 
for determining fair and reasonable benchmark prices for these services (Government Code § 
4526.). 

Section 2.5 Design – Build Projects 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Board may elect to use the Design – Build method 
to select a contractor for construction or improvement of the Hospital facility if the project 
amount will be greater than $1.0 million. (H&S Code 32132.5., Public Contract Code 20133.) 

If the Board elects to use the design – build method, the Board shall follow the contracting 
provisions of Public Contract Code 20133 and shall award the contract based on “best value” as 
defined in section 20133. Because of their complexity the Design – Build contracting provisions 
have not been delineated in this policy. 

Section 3. Formal Bidding Procedure 
Section 3.1 Bid Packet 
Where formal bidding is required, the CEO shall prepare a bid packet, including a notice inviting 
formal bids (“Notice Inviting Bids

(a)  Prequalification 

”).  The packet shall include a description of the scope of 
Work in such detail and written with such specificity as may be required to allow all potential 
bidders to understand the need and give a level playing field to all bidders (Specifications). In 
establishing the Specifications, the CEO may consider the direct cost of the project as well as 
any requirement reasonably related to the quality, fitness and capacity of a bidder to perform the 
proposed Work satisfactorily. 



Page 4 
 

The CEO may establish a uniform prequalification system using a standard questionnaire to 
evaluate the ability, competency and integrity of bidders as outlined in Public Contract Code §§ 
20101 et seq. In such event, the CEO may require each prospective bidder to complete and 
submit a standardized questionnaire and financial statement. 

(b) Bidder’s Security 
The CEO shall include in the Specifications a requirement that all bids be accompanied by 
bidder’s security in the form of cash, a cashier's check, certified check, or a bidder's bond 
executed by an admitted surety insurer made payable to the Hospital. The security shall be in an 
amount equal to at least ten percent (10%) of the amount bid. (Public Contract Code § 10167.)  
Any bid not accompanied by one of the applicable bidder’s security shall be rejected as non-
responsive.  The District shall return to all unsuccessful bidders their respective bidder’s security 
within five (5) working days after awarding the contract.   

(c) Performance Bond 

The CEO shall include in the Specifications, a requirement that the successful bidder furnish a 
performance bond in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the contract sum at the time 
of entering into the contract if the contract amount for the work is in excess of $500,000.  The 
performance bond shall be filed with the District to insure the District against faulty, improper or 
incomplete materials or workmanship, and to insure the District of complete and proper 
performance of the contract. 

(d) Payment Bond 
The CEO shall include in the Specifications, a requirement that the successful bidder to whom a 
contract is awarded which is in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) shall furnish a 
payment bond acceptable to the District. (Civil Code § 9550)  This labor and material bond shall 
be filed with the District pursuant to applicable laws of the State of California.  The CEO shall 
not require a payment bond from an architectural, landscape architectural, engineering, land 
surveying or construction management firms. 

(e) Completion Date 
The CEO may include in the Specifications a time within which the whole or any specified 
portion of the Work shall be completed.  (Government Code § 53069.85.)  

The CEO may include in the Specifications a provision that the contractor shall forfeit a 
specified sum of money for each day completion is delayed beyond the date stated in the 
Specifications.  

The CEO may include in the Specifications a provision for the payment of a bonus to the 
contractor for completion of the project prior to the specified date stated in the Specifications 
when such timely completion would be beneficial to the District.  (Government Code § 
53069.85.) 

(f)  Subcontractors 
The CEO shall include in the Specifications a provision that any prime contractor include in 
his/her bid: (i) the name and address of each subcontractor who will perform labor or render 
service or fabricate or install a portion of the Work in excess of 5% of the total amount of the 
contract and (ii) a description of Work to be performed by each such subcontractor.   



Page 5 
 

The bidder shall list only one subcontractor for each portion as is defined by the bidder in his/her 
bid. (Public Contract Code § 4104.)  

A prime contractor whose bid is accepted may not substitute a new subcontractor in place of the 
subcontractor listed in the original bid except as allowed under Public Contract Code 4107. 

3.2 Notice Inviting Bids.  

Where formal bidding is required, the CEO shall publish the Notice Inviting Bids at least ten 
(10) days before the date of opening the bids.  Notice shall be published at least twice, not less 
than five (5) days apart, in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the 
jurisdiction of the District. (Public Contract Code 22037). 

In addition, the CEO shall also publish Notice Inviting Bids in a trade publication, as specified in 
Public Contract Code § 22036. 

3.3 Requirements of Notice Inviting Bids 
The CEO shall include all of the following in the Notice Inviting Bids:  

a. Description of the contemplated Work; 

b. The procedure by which potential bidders may obtain electronic copies of the Plans and 
Specifications; 

c. The final time, date and address (or e-mail address) for receiving and opening of bids 
(including designation of the appropriate District person or office) (Government Code § 
53068; Public Contract Code § 4104.5, 22037) 

d. The date, time and place for opening of bids;  

e. The payment or performance bond amounts if required by the Specifications (Civil Code 
§ 9550) 

f. The time within which the whole or any specified portion of the Work shall be completed 
(Government Code § 53069.85) 

g. The penalty amount, if required by the Specifications, for each day completion is delayed 
beyond the specified time. (Government Code 53069.85) 

h. The bonus amount payable to the contractor for completion of the work prior to the 
specified completion day if a bonus payment is included in the Specifications. 
(Government Code 53069.85) 

3.4 Submission of Bids.   

The CEO shall accept only written sealed bids from the prospective bidders.  The CEO shall date 
and time stamp all bids upon receipt.  All bids shall remain sealed until the date and time set 
forth for opening the bids in the Notice Inviting Bids.  Any bid received by the District after the 
time specified in the Notice Inviting Bids shall be returned unopened. (Government Code 53068) 

3.5 Examination and Evaluation of Bids. 
On the date provided in the Notice Inviting Bids, the District shall publicly open the sealed bids.  
A person designated by the CEO, will attend and officiate over the opening of bids (“Opening”).  
The bids will be made public for bidders and other properly interested parties who may be 
present at the Opening. 



Page 6 
 

The District reserves the right not to determine the low bidder at the Opening, to obtain the 
opinion of counsel on the legality and sufficiency of all bids, and to determine at a later date 
which bid to accept.  Such determination shall be made within sixty (60) days of the Opening or 
unless a different period of time is specified in the Notice Inviting Bids.   

In the event there are two or more identical lowest bids pursuant to any provision requiring 
competitive bidding, the CEO may determine by lot which bid shall be accepted. (Government 
Code 53064)  

3.6. Award of Contract.  
The CEO shall award the contract to the lowest bidder, provided the bidder is responsible as 
defined by section 3.7 and the bid is reasonable and meets the requirements and criteria set forth 
in the Notice Inviting Bids 

Any contract awarded by the District shall be subject to all applicable provisions of federal, 
California and local laws.  In the event of a conflict between any contract documents and any 
applicable law, the law shall prevail. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the District is under no obligation to accept the lowest 
responsible bidder and reserves the right to reject all bids. (H&S Code 32132)  

Section 3.7 Responsible Bidder 
a. For purposes of this Policy, “responsible bidder” means a bidder who has demonstrated 
the attribute of trustworthiness and quality during prior service, a reputation for reliability and 
satisfactory service with other clients, sufficient financial capacity and the physical capability 
and the technical and non-technical expertise in order to perform the contract satisfactorily 
(Public Contract Code 1103).   

b. If the CEO determines that the lowest bidder is not responsible, the Board may award the 
contract to the next lowest responsible bidder 

c. If the Board decides to award the contract to a bidder other than the lowest bidder 
pursuant to subparagraph (b), the Board shall first notify the low bidder of any evidence, either 
obtained from third parties or concluded as a result of the District’s investigation, which reflects 
on such bidder’s responsibility.  The District shall afford the low bidder an opportunity to rebut 
such adverse evidence and shall permit such bidder to present evidence that it is qualified.  Such 
opportunity to rebut adverse evidence and to present evidence of qualification shall be submitted 
in writing to the District. 

Section 4. Bid Conditions 
All formal bids shall be subject to the following general conditions. 
Section 4.1 Minimum Number of Bids.   
The CEO shall consider a minimum of three (3) bids whenever possible; however, where the 
CEO cannot obtain three bids or when the CEO decides that time will not permit obtaining three 
bids, the CEO may consider a minimum of two (2) bids. 

Section 4.2 Multiple Bids.   



Page 7 
 

When bids for multiple items are solicited at the same time, the CEO may accept parts of one or 
more bids (provided the Notice Inviting Bids so indicates) unless the bidder has specified to the 
contrary, in which event the District reserves the right to disregard the bid in its entirety. 

Section 4.4 Minor Deviations.   
The CEO reserves the right to waive inconsequential deviations from the specifications in the 
substance or form of bids received. 

Section 5. Limit of Authority Delegated to CEO  
Section 5.1 District Contracts (Non Hospital) 

Facility Project contracts or contracts regarding land purchases and leases which bind the District 
(but not the Hospital) to the terms of a contractual agreement shall be approved by the Board and 
shall be signed by the Chair of the Board unless the Board designates an alternate signer when 
the contract is approved. 

Section 5.2 Capital Project Contracts 
Facility Project contracts for capital projects that will financially obligate the Hospital to more 
than $100,000 shall be reviewed by the Finance Committee. 

Facility Project contracts for capital projects that are included in the capital budget and will 
obligate the Hospital to more than $250,000 shall be approved by the Board. 

Facility Project contracts for capital projects that are not included in the capital budget and will 
obligate the Hospital to more than $50,000 shall be approved by the Board. 

Facility Project change orders that in aggregate increase the scope of the Facility Project by more 
than 20% shall be approved by the Board. 

Section 5.3 Board Approval Process 
For all Facility Project contracts where the approval of the Board is required (not delegated to the 
CEO) the project Specifications and the Notice Inviting Bids shall be approved by the Board 
before publication. 

For all Facility Project contracts where the approval of the Board is required (not delegated to the 
CEO) the final contract shall be reviewed by the Finance Committee before submission to the 
Board for approval. 

 


	1 AGENDA 02.04.16
	7
	Board Minutes 01.07.16
	FC MINUTES 11.17.15
	GC Minutes 12.15.15
	QC MINUTES 11.18.15
	8
	8 CHA_McLeod presentation2 4 16
	Update on a Rapidly Changing Healthcare Environment �
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	National Health Expenditures - By Category
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Questions?�
	Thank you!

	9
	Board Letter Res. No. 327
	Res. No. 327_1206b CLINIC
	10
	1 Board Ltr_Satellite Healthcare_1_25_2016 (2)
	2 Lease (clean)-SonomaValleyHospital-1-27-16
	3 Addendum HC_DOCS-#1253486-v7-Satellite_1_23_16
	6.  CONTRACTED SERVICES
	6.1 Contracts.  Lessee will engage an Architect to prepare and submit Construction Drawings to required government agencies for review and permit issuance.  Prior to submission for permit, Lessee’s Architect will submit Construction Drawings including...
	(a) Lessee may initiate changes in the Work.  Each such change must receive prior written approval of the Lessor within 3 business days from submission, such approval not to be reasonably withheld or delayed. Change orders shall be approved by the gov...
	(b) Lesee shall enter into a written construction contract reasonably approved by Lessor with a General Contractor which shall comply with Standards of Performance of this Work Letter.
	(c) Lessee will arrange for project inspections as required by OSHPD.

	6.2 Contractors Standards of Performance.  Lessee shall hold the contract with the General Contractor.  The Work shall be performed only by licensed Contractors and Subcontractors.
	(a) Lessee’s Contractor’s and Subcontractors shall be required to procure insurance for workman's compensation, commercial automatic liability, and commercial general liability in at least $1,000,000 limits per policy. Certificates of such insurance m...
	(b) Lessee’s Contractor shall deliver work free from any and all liens, claims, chattel, mortgages, and conditional sales agreements of 3PrdP parties.  All parties filing liens shall provide progress lien release and unconditional lien releases at the...
	(c) Lessee’s Contractor upon completion of the Work, shall furnish Lessor with an accurate “as built” plan of the Work as constructed by the General Contractor in both electronic and hard copy.
	(d) Lessee’s Contractor shall provide and furnish all labor, materials, supplies and services for the completion of the Project.  The Work shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner free of defect, shall conform strictly to the Construction D...
	(e) Lessee’s Contractor shall provide a written schedule per a submitted phasing plan and confirm the schedule with the Lessor prior to starting the Work at least 72 hours in advance of commencement of the Construction project.
	i. Upon start of Construction, Lessee’s Contractor will provide project updates to the Lessor's Building Engineer on a weekly basis until the completion of the project.
	ii. Lessee’s Contractor must submit requests for shut downs of utilities to Lessor at least 48 hours in advance of required shut down.
	(f) Lessee’s Contractor shall provide a competent representative on-site while construction is occurring to receive notices, orders and instructions and communicate with the Lessor.
	(g) Lessee’s Contractor shall at all times from the beginning to the completion of the contract, provide all necessary and proper safeguards for Infection Control, Security, Fire and Life Safety in and around the area of work in accordance with Hospit...


	1. Interest, or amortization on mortgages or ground or master lease payments;
	2. Legal fees incurred in negotiating tenant leases, and in enforcing tenant leases other than this lease;
	3. Leasing commissions;
	4. The cost of improvements or alterations to tenant spaces;
	5. The cost of providing any service directly to and/or paid directly by any tenant (as opposed to services provided to all tenants);
	6. Any costs expressly excluded from Common Area Operating Expenses elsewhere in the Lease and the Addendum to Lease;
	7. Costs of any items for which Lessor receives reimbursement from insurance proceeds or a third party;
	8. Attorney fees, costs of environmental investigations, loan origination fees, appraisal, closing costs, financing costs on any mortgage or mortgages, ground lease payments, or other debt instrument encumbering the Project;
	9. Insurance premiums to the extent of any refunds of those premiums;
	10. Any bad debt loss, rent loss, or reserves for bad debt or rent loss;
	11. Interest or penalties resulting from:
	a. Lessor’s negligence or willful misconduct; or
	b. Any amount payable by Lessor resulting from Lessor’s default in its obligations under any agreement to which Lessor is a party, including, without limitation, all leases now or hereafter in effect with respect to the Real Property of which the Prem...
	12. Costs, fees, and compensation paid to Lessor, or to Lessor’s subsidiaries or affiliates, for services rendered that exceed market based fees and compensation as might be charged by an unaffiliated third party of comparable skill, competence, statu...
	13. Costs associated with:
	a. Operation of the business of the ownership of the Real Property or entity that constitutes Lessor or Lessor’s property manager, as distinguished from the cost of building operations, including the costs of partnership or corporate accounting and le...
	b. Lessor’s general corporate or partnership overhead and general administrative expenses, including the salaries of management personnel; or
	c. Wages, salaries, and other compensation paid to any executive, employee of Lessor or Lesssor’s property manager or paid to any off-site personnel;
	14. Costs arising from the presence of any Hazardous Materials in or about the Premises or the Real Property, (including Hazardous Materials in the ground, water or soil) that was not placed in the Premises by Lessee;
	15. Costs incurred because the Building, or Common Area violate any valid, applicable building code, regulation, or law in effect and as interpreted by government authorities before the date on which the Lease is signed. This exclusion from Common Exp...
	16. Costs of:
	a. Initial construction of the Building or any additional buildings;
	b. Reconstruction of the Building or any additional buildings, except for insurance deductibles;
	c. Modification, alteration, repair, additions, improvements or replacements of any portion of the Building due to faulty construction (other than by Lessee) defects in the design, construction, materials or workmanship of the Building or Common Area; or
	d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessor shall be entitled to a management fee which will be part of the CAM charges for the center; provided, however, the total management fee for the center does not exceed the three percent (3%) management fee cap.
	17. Costs incurred in installing, operating, and maintaining any specialty service that is not necessary for Lessor’s provision, management, maintenance, and repair of required services for the operation of the Building or any associated parking facil...
	18. Charitable or political contributions or fees or dues payable to trade associations, industry associations, or similar associations;
	19. All items and services for which a contractor, manufacturer or supplier or Lessee or any other tenant in the Building is required to reimburse Lessor (other than through Lessee’s share or any other Lessee’s share of “Common Area Operating Expenses”;
	20. Costs for sculpture, paintings or other objects of art or the insuring, repair or maintenance thereof in excess of $200.00;
	21. Any costs, fees, dues, contributions or similar expenses for industry associations or similar organizations;
	22. Any compensation paid to clerks, attendants or other persons in commercial concessions operated by Lessor in the Building;
	23. The entertainment expenses and travel expenses of Lessor, its employees, agents, partners and affiliates;
	24. Costs to traffic studies, environmental impact reports, transportation systems management plans and reports, and traffic mitigation measures or due to any studies or reports; and
	25. Earthquake insurance deductibles.
	FORM OF COMMENCEMENT DATE MEMORANDUM



	11
	Res.326 Line of Credit Extension 02.04.16
	12
	12 Capital Spending Q2 FY 2016
	13
	#0 Narrative - 12-31-15
	#1 Percentages for Narrative
	copy

	#3 Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet

	#4 Income Statement
	IS - New

	#5 Variance Analysis
	Variance Analysis

	14
	14 BOARD REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 2016
	15
	Board Letter Policy Governing Bidding for Facilities Contracts
	Policy Governing Bidding for Facility Contracts 1.7.16

